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PRESIDENT’S  
M E S S A G E 

This is my sixth annual 
report to you as 
President. 

YOUR SPORT
The choice of where 
to ride, what to ride, 
and whether it is for 
fun with your mates or 
at an organized event 

or race, continues to be great for Mountain Bikers in 
Australia. We all celebrate the achievements of our 
best mountain bikers, but it is the everyday riding 
that we all do that is special and that MTBA will 
continue to service for you.

There have been questions raised throughout the 
year about whether racing is ‘dying’ in Australia.   
MTBA monitors race entries and analysis shows 
that the total number of people entering events is 
growing at about 11% per year – but that entries per 
event are dropping. Put simply, the rate of growth in 
events is greater than the rate of growth of people 
doing events. We have seen many new events appear 
on the scene, including the growth in Gravity Enduro 
and Cyclocross. One reason that numbers per-event 
are dropping is that there is now so much choice for 
mountain bikers. On any weekend you can probably 
find three events within easy distance, so the need 
to congregate at one big event is less. We have also 
seen the end of some long-established events too.   
These are market place corrections and our sport 
will stabilise, as it always has, in a new form which 
continues to provide the excitement and challenges 
that are mountain biking.

One challenge for MTBA in this area is to ensure that 
your clubs continue to succeed in this environment.   
Your clubs are important as a focus for the sport 
and to conduct many of the development activities 
important for our future riders. To survive, your clubs 
need your support. Club activities include specific 
areas such as Junior Development, Women’s Programs 
and Schools Events. (The ACT Schools Championships 
this year had 547 riders from 37 schools.) MTBA is 
working to improve support to clubs by providing 
guides and other documentation to assist their 
regular activities. We have also created two staff 
positions in MTBA for Development and these are 
taking up some of the load from the clubs.

The increased involvement of commercial entities in 
mountain biking shows that our sport is growing and 
that businesses see opportunities. Governments are 
also becoming more involved as they have increased 
their support for adventure tourism. Our National 
XC Marathon Championships were held in Derby, 
Tasmania, in 2015 and are a perfect example of 
Government investment in mountain biking – and 
how it can pay off in the rejuvenation of a town  
and the surrounding areas.

When I look back several years, there have never 
been as many clubs, private promoters and 
professional trail building companies in Australia 
as there are now. The same goes for the number of 
events and other riding opportunities for you all. 
I am proud that MTBA has been able to lay the solid 
foundation on which all these endeavours have been 
built. I see MTBA’s role as an enabler in these areas 
continuing into the future.

Your National Series has expanded to cover a whole 
new range of disciplines.   MTBA conducted a round 
of a National Series in every State and Territory in 
Australia – the first time we have done so.   This 
provides riders of all skill levels with the opportunity 
to participate in national competition and it brings 
our sport to all of Australia.   MTBA also ran our first 
National Gravity Enduro Championships in Cairns, 
based out of Palm Cove, with Chris Panozzo and Em 
Parkes crowned our inaugural national champions – 
Em’s 3rd national champions’ jersey for 2015!

THE INTERNATIONAL STAGE
National and international achievement represents 
a very small portion of the activity of MTBA, and 
of you as mountain bikers. However it is what 
gets us visibility with Governments and ultimately 
our international performances affect the level 
of Government support we receive to run other 
programs for you. And, lets face it, we all love it 
when our riders do well on the international stage.

Oceania Championships. Held in Toowoomba in 
2015, this was a great event and showcased the best 
regional riders. These alternate between Australia 
and New Zealand, although it would be great to be 
able to have other Oceania Nations as a location in 
future. We are going back to the Toowoomba region 
in early 2016 for a national series round. 

YEAR IN FOCUS
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World Cups. A large number of Aussies took part 
in the circuit this year, with some very good results 
happening along the way, along with some valuable 
lessons and development opportunities. MTBA invested 
in supporting some riders on the World Cup circuit, as 
a means of improving our national ranking leading up 
to the 2016 Olympic Games in Rio. Our Downhillers 
led the way with series rankings, with Troy Brosnan 
3rd and Tracey Hannah 4th in the Elites, and Andrew 
Crimmins 2nd in the Juniors. Dan McConnell 14th and 
Bec Henderson 25th were our highest ranked Elite XCO 
riders, having peaked early in the season to ensure 
Olympic selection.

UCI World Champs. Our team returned home from 
Andorra with Janine Jungfels as the World Champion 
in Observed Trials, with Tracey Hannah (Elite Women) 
and Jackson Frew (Junior Men) our Bronze Medalists in 
the Downhill.   We had 3 Aussies in the top 10 of the 
Elite Men Downhill with Troy Brosnan best placed at 
6th.  Janine is Australia’s only Trials medallist and this 
win was a great reward for her hard work since taking 
bronze a couple of years ago. Em Parkes placed 9th in 
the Elite Women XC Eliminator. The performance of 
our team is a good indication of future potential at the 
World Championships and I am confident in some great 
results at Cairns. I would particularly like to thank  
Peter Dowse and the staff for their work with the 
Australian Team.

World Masters MTB Championships. Held the week 
before the UCI World Championships, and in the same 
location, this event saw Craig Peacock 4th, Donnal Dall 
5th, Karen Evans 5th and Brad Clarke 16th in their  
age-groups. Great results for Australia.

Enduro World Series. Jared Graves continues to stamp 
his class and authority in Gravity Enduro with a win in 
the final round. Jared was on the podium in two other 
rounds and was never outside the top-10 in the races he 
entered. This style of event is increasing in popularity 
and it provides a good mix of exciting racing plus the 
opportunity for rider interaction.

Tour de Timor. An interesting and challenging 
Stage Race held by our northern neighbor who are 
still developing their mountain biking. Aussies Craig 
Cooke won the men’s title after coming back strong on 
the final day with Gina Ricardo placed second in the 
women’s race, behind Portugal’s Celine Carpinteiro.

World Solo 24Hr Championships. Jason English 
took the Elite Men’s win at WEMBO 2015 in 
Weaverville, California to claim his 6th successive world 
championships. He is now the equal record holder 
for the greatest number of World Solo 24Hr MTB 
Championships. Kate Penglase was on the podium with 
4th in Elite Women. Other Australian winners were; 
Peter Arch in 23-29 Men and Scott Nicholas in Men’s 
Single Speed (with Brett Bellchambers 2nd).
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YOUR MTBA
MTBA is in a sound financial position and well placed  
to meet the future challenges of our sport. We  
continue to work with the Australian Sports  
Commission to achieve National Sporting Organisation 
status, which will provide additional support to us.

We have moved our offices to the Gold Coast and will  
be established there ready for our 2015 AGM.  
This move was caused, to some extent, by the closure  
of the Sydney Cycling Australia offices where MTBA  
has operated for several years. The move to the Gold 
Coast is a lot more than just an office re-location.    
We are partnering with Bond University to provide 
sports science and research opportunities for our 
athletes and we will establish a Centre of Excellence for 
Mountain Biking there. With close proximity to trails 
and the accommodation options at the University, it is 
an ideal place for development camps and, of course,  
a great base for the 2018 Commonwealth Games.

This move also allows us to provide more services to 
members – as we will be using dedicated staff to do so.

You will have seen that MTBA has created our own 
sporting awards and these were first presented at the 
2015 National Championships in Bright, VIC. This allows 
us to recognize the whole range of disciplines in our 
sport and reward our best performers, and those who 
support them.

PERFORMANCE ENHANCING DRUG USE
Many Australian sporting codes continue to be under 
the spotlight on this issue. I first communicated my 
views to you on this subject in 2012 when MTBA took 
action in advance of the reviews and investigations 
which began that year. The MTBA Constitution requires 
the leadership and management of MTBA to be  
drug-free, past and present, and to declare this when 
they stand for election or sign employment agreements.   
I will continue to promote mountain biking as a  
drug-free sport and I personally take a very strong 
position on this issue.

We have recently seen the announcement of an 
international mountain biker (Blaza Klemencic) testing 
positive for EPO, and we should never underestimate 
the effect that these cheats can have on the clean riders 
in our sport – by denying them placings and careers.

WHAT IS ON THE HORIZON FOR MTBA
The Australian national cycling body, Cycling Australia, 
has a new Board and Management. The formation of 
a single unified Australian cycling body is still delayed 
by the issues that CA had to deal with, and I expect 
discussions to re-commence soon. It remains my opinion 
that a new unified cycling body represents the greatest 
potential for improving our sport. But I will not be 
recommending it to you unless the interests of mountain 
biking are fully addressed and ultimately integration will 
not happen unless you vote in favour of it. We are also 
working to move MTBA to becoming a Company Limited 
by Guarantee. Again, this will not happen unless the 
members vote in favour of it, but it will place MTBA in a 
better position when negotiating with State and Federal 
bodies on your behalf.

MTBA is not just about racing and it’s not just about elite 
riders. We have to ensure that MTBA is relevant to all 
mountain bikers in Australia. We have provided added 
benefits to members during the year and we will work to 
improve the value that MTBA Membership offers.

With the increase in commercial mountain biking,  
I see MTBA expanding to take on more of a national 
accreditation and standards function. You need to be 
confident that the events you enter, and the activities 
you do, are well run and safe.

MTBA would not be possible without the tireless 
dedication of our members and volunteers at all levels 
of the sport. That is where the foundation of our future 
is laid. I have had the great opportunity over the past six 
years to talk with our members and potential members.   
From being present at our National Championships, 
school events through to club social rides, I have received 
your feedback personally on what you think MTBA can 
do differently, plus much more by email.   Please continue 
to do that and never underestimate the value I place on 
your comments.

Finally I would like to thank all of MTBA – our members, 
the staff and the Management Committee for their 
assistance in what has been achieved in the last 12 
months, and planned for our future. The MTBA Committee 
includes a range of people with professional skills who volunteer 
their time and energy to mountain biking. Thank you.

I wish you all a very successful 2016, on and off the bike.

RUSS BAKER AM
President

PRESIDENT’S  
M E S S A G E 

YEAR IN FOCUS

6 MOUNTAIN BIKE AUSTRALIA ANNUAL REPORT 2015



77



The 2014/15 year is the 
first full 12 months I 
have had in the role 
since I joined MTBA  
as CEO and from my 
perspective it’s been an 
incredible experience.

It was a year of 
significant changes 
in nearly every area 

of the organisation. New staff, new programs and 
activities, an expanded number of events, rebuilding 
of some past principles and development of some 
new frameworks and foundations for the future 
growth and development of the sport, just to name 
a few!

Some of the highlights for the 2014/15 year were;

Preliminary development of a new rider development 
pathway that incorporated a series of very successful 
Junior Development Camps conducted through all 
States and Territories along with the introduction of 
an U17 Junior Development Squad. The U17 Junior 
Development Squad in future year’s is planned 
to expand to a State based program rather than 
function as a National squad.

Membership numbers continued to grow at 
approximately 5.5% from the previous year. Whilst 
growth remains healthy, it has slowed from previous 
years, especially with a downturn in junior member 
numbers. Recreation membership grew significantly 
recording over 25% increase for the year. From a 
gender perspective, women make up approximately 
14% of membership, yet general cycling statistics 
indicate well over 45% of the population who ride 
bikes are women. Attracting women to join MTBA 
remains a significant objective for our organisation 
into the future. 

MTBA introduced a Free Trial membership program, 
offering people who have not been a member of 
MTBA in the past three years to join as members and 
participate in events without the need to buy a day 
licence for a period of eight weeks. The program also 
facilitates the opportunity for new members and local 
MTB clubs in their area to make contact through an 
information sharing notification system. Throughout 
the year, over 8,000 people took up the free trial 
membership offer, with over 15% signing on as full 
members following their trial period. 

Numerous improved benefits were secured and 
added to our members insurance benefits during 
2014-15, including offering Race members coverage 
in all MTB events (regardless of MTBA sanctioning), 
and the ability for Recreation members to join MTBA 
direct outside the Club network. This last initiative 
has been introduced in an effort to attract MTB riders 
from within the 4 million people who ride a bike each 
year to join the organisation, where joining a Club 
might be restricting membership opportunities. Into 
the future, MTBA are looking to introduce further 
member benefits including bike insurance, family 
discounts and other extended insurance benefits.

A number of Level 1 NCAS Coaches courses were 
conducted throughout the country during the year 
with significant success as our overall number of 
accredited coaches increased. MTBA and the general 
MTB community is receiving great benefits as coaches 
now attend and utilise MTBA’s very successful junior 
development camps as part of the coach education/
development process.

MTBA are very close, following a considerable 
consultation and development process, to implement 
a new Skill’s Instructor’s program, which is designed 
to educate participants in general teaching of MTB 
Skills that will also come with NCAS accreditation 
for insurance coverage purposes. This new program 
is designed specifically for those wishing to teach 
skills as opposed to coaching and will provide a very 
positive and beneficial addition to our current MTB 
education programs.

Our current online accreditation program for  
Level 1 commissaires remains extremely well-
supported and is seeing an increased number of 
commissaires introduced throughout our affiliated 
Club networks and wider MTB community. During 
the year, a Level 2 course was successfully conducted, 
however now pressure is on to introduce and conduct 
commissaire accreditation courses at the higher levels. 
These courses will become a focus of attention during 
the upcoming year.

From what I understand to be a first, MTBA conducted 
a National level event in every State and Territory 
throughout the year, including events from our 
National Series, XCM National Series, Cyclocross and 
Gravity Enduro National Series. 

MTBA ventured back into the coordination of an 
XCM National Series, in partnership with a variety of 

CEO’S  
R E P O R T 
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MTB Clubs and well established private promoter events. 
Whilst a new venture, the series has been successful 
overall and provides a very healthy and solid platform 
for the future development of this highly supported series.

MTBA for the first time ventured into and established an 
internationally and nationally recognised Gravity Enduro 
National Series and National Championship for this very 
exciting and popular discipline.  

Following Cycling Australia’s decision to withdraw from 
coordinating Cyclocross, MTBA took responsibility for 
the discipline, during what was overall a successful 
season, but a season that came with many challenges 
and transitions by all parties for the future.

MTBA took a new direction in trails advocacy, providing 
more direction in assisting our member clubs and 
landowners with their planning, strategic development 
and facilitation of advocacy opportunities between 
local clubs, councils and landowners. Facilitating the 
establishment and introduction of an Australian MTB 
Trails Standards & Guidelines remains a significant 
objective for MTBA into the future.

MTBA contributed to the Australian Sports Commission/
State Cycling Bodies recapitalisation loan that was 
provided to Cycling Australia to aid its financial 
restructure and recovery from past financial difficulties. 
This decision by MTBA was made to strengthen and 
reflect our commitment to preserving Cycling Australia 
and the relationship that MTBA shares with them.

The MTBA website has been a project that has received 
significant planning and redevelopment activities behind 
the scenes and during the early part of the next year, 
One key feature of the new website is the introduction 
of a ”Community” section which will provide an 
interactive information sharing portal that can be 
contributed to by elements of the MTB community. 
MTBA have been very active in the social media space, 
and we have had a significant increase in our followers on 
FaceBook to now over 18,000.

MTBA were very excited to release a new online events 
calendar over the past year. This calendar has been 
developed to provide coverage of all MTB events 
conducted during the year and includes significant filters 
to aid users find events. 

Stage 1 links back to our RegisterNow system as well as 
accepts direct event registrations and can link directly to 
event registration pages. The calendar is mobile-friendly 
and we are driving it to become a major source of MTB 
events for riders throughout the country. Stage 2 will 
incorporate users being able to create a profile and 
receive alerts when suitable matching events are added 
to the calendar. Stage 2 is anticipated to be developed in 
the upcoming year.

During the course of the past year, MTBA have 
made improvements in relationships with numerous 
sources, including media outlets, suppliers, 
landowners, government and supporter networks. 
MTBA is continually working to further develop these 
relationships and build on them into the future for the 
benefit of our sport. One key stakeholder relationship 
that has undertaken major improvement over the past 
12 months is our relationship with New Zealand MTB.  
I am pleased to advise our two organisations are working 
together on a number of improved cooperative activities 
and events, such as upcoming shared training camps and 
a Trans-Tasman Schools MTB Cup in April, 2016.

During the year, MTBA benefited from some fantastic 
staff working for us, including some new additions, 
whilst also losing some losing some colleagues as they 
chose to pursue new opportunities. Staff can often 
be the unsung or simply expected contributors to an 
organisation, but without the passion that all current 
and past MTBA staff have had for the organisation 
and the sport, I simply do not think the dynamic and 
significant changes and improvements that have 
occurred during the past 12 months would have been 
possible. 

Numerous international successes and results were 
achieved by numerous Australian athletes throughout all 
disciplines of MTB. However, it is fair to say that whilst 
as a country we have achieved some terrific results in 
some disciplines, Australia does have some considerable 
work to do in order to rebuild our rider base to maintain 
our competitiveness on the international stage in some 
of the other disciplines. This process can take time, 
and requires a strong framework and foundation that 
provides opportunities all the way along the path that 
includes talent identification, coaching, athlete support, 
sports science and testing, as well as financial support 
mechanisms. 
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MTB in Australia does suffer from a lack of funding 
for the development of the sport across all areas. This 
is an area that I personally wish to change with the 
support of the MTB community. MTB is one of only 
a handful of sports that has representation in both 
Olympic and Commonwealth Games, but receives 
no direct Federal Government funding. It is public 
knowledge that our cycling colleagues in road, track 
and BMX all receive significant direct Participation 
and High Performance funding from the Australian 
Sports Commission and Australian Institute of Sport. 
This situation places significant pressure on MTBA and 
potentially penalises the growth and development 
of the sport in Australia. It could easily be argued 
that this lack of direct financial aid to MTB is a major 
contributor in the current shortage of riders and 
performances we are currently experiencing in XCO.

Subsequently, MTBA is challenged with finding 
creative ways to develop and provide opportunities 
and support for our future riders and in a new 
initiative for 2015/16, we intend to open our doors 
to potential supporters of this great sport that would 
like to contribute towards the development of MTBA-
HP program.

MTBA also introduced a new High Performance 
grants program during the year to help our aspiring 
riders undertake their international activities and 
compete in events overseas. Approximately 24 riders 
received support during the year and provides nearly 
$50,000 in total support.  

In a step towards improved independent recognition 
from the Australian Sports Commission and with 
support from Cycling Australia, MTBA was provided 
with a Sports Sustainability & Development Grant 
very late in the year. This grant was the result 
of constant lobbying of the ASC for support. 
We hope this opportunity and recognition will 
continue to open doors to much needed support 
equal to other NSO’s as we work hard to grow and 
develop our organisation and MTB throughout the 
country including our commitment to international 
representation.

At the end of the financial year our Mascot office  
was closed for apartment redevelopment. Cycling 
Australia decided to consolidate their Sydney 
office into their Melbourne based office. MTBA 
subsequently, needing a new home, followed up on 
some initial interest from the Gold Coast City Council 
and have since secured a support package from 
the Council, and a significantly positive developing 
partnership with Bond University to help us grow and 
develop the Sport.

Many people need to be acknowledged for the 
contributions they make on a regular basis to this 
great sport; this list encompasses all levels from 
volunteers and officials at club level, parents who 
transport their children to MTB activities, coaches 
and skills instructors, trail builders, sponsors and 
supporters, Governments, councils and landowners, 
commissaires, right through to MTBA staff and 
Management Committee members and all in-between. 
MTB as a pastime doesn’t require much, but as a sport 
it requires significant contributions and without this 
support and assistance, MTB would not have grown 
as it has within the country and everyone who has 
contributed, even in a very small way, should be very 
proud of what you have helped create.

I look forward to another 12 months of wonderful 
opportunities and outcomes for MTBA and the sport 
of MTB in Australia.

 
SHANE COPPIN
Chief Executive Officer

CEO’S  
R E P O R T 
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Continuing to evolve MTBA to be a 
relevant representative organisation 
for all mountain bikers is of prime 
importance. 
Since I joined the committee at the November 2014 
AGM, there has been an enormous amount to learn 
about the breadth and scope of what MTBA actually 
does.   As a recreational rider, a weekend race warrior 
on the local club scene, the women’s rep for my local 
cycle club and mother of the Australian U23 female 
champion, I did not realise the effort that is put into 
the administration of the sport by the staff, unpaid 
committee members and volunteers who keep events, 
finances and sport development ticking over for the 
benefit of members. 

MTBA is a small association attempting to cover a 
significant number of events across Australia whilst 
supporting juniors, women, weekend warriors and 
high performance athletes.  In addition, MTBA covers 
development, cyclocross, marathon, XCO, XCE, observed 
trials, downhill and all the services required to run the 
sport such as policy review, insurance, rider support and 

more across a massive geographical area.  I would like to 
thank my fellow Committee members for their support, 
and our CEO, Shane Coppin, for steering his small team 
of enthusiastic staff through the many challenges that 
such a broad sport offers.  I also thank President Russ 
Baker for not just his photographical prowess but his vast 
knowledge and incredible devotion to the sport.

My intention over the coming period is to ensure a focus 
remains on introducing more females to this great sport 
and to promote more club activities that benefit the 
vast majority of our membership, recreational riders and 
weekend warriors.

The record of Committee meetings and attendance for 
MTBA for the financial year 2014/15 is shown on the 
following page. 

 
HELEN PARKES
Secretary

SECRETARY’S  
R E P O R T 
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MEETING ATTENDANCE 2014/15
The committee meet on a regular basis. Most meetings are held via phone conference with quarterly  
meetings held face to face.
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TREASURER’S  
R E P O R T 

The revenue for MTBA grew by 
22.5% from $1.87M to $2.29M with 
growth coming from membership, 
grants and hosting fees.
In line with strategic plan for 2014 to 2017 MTBA 
continues to spend in developing events, development 
of elite riders, training of event officials and support 
of developmental programs for riders. MTBA financial 
results were a net loss of $152K reducing equity from 
$361K to $34K. A Grant was received in June 2015 for 
$120K which is surplus to the 2015-2016 Budget and 
consequently will increase the equity to $154K as at 
1st July 2015. In response to declining equity position, 
MTBA has currently enacted a renewed focus on 
control of operational costs and the development of 
membership opportunities for riders. The MTBA 2014 
to 2017 strategic plan remains the core of the Budget 
development for 2016.

The key accounting change adopted during the year was 
the introduction of accrual accounting rather than cash 
accounting. This had the effect of bring forward costs 

into the 2015 financial year as a one off adjustment. 
This expected to allow MTBA to maintain a positive 
outcome for the 2016 year, with the goal being a modest 
surplus of $60K. Per the strategic plan for 2014-2017, the 
following 2017 year is expected to see a rebuilding of 
equity to better serve MTBA next strategic development 
for 2018-2021.

The significant event affecting the 2015 financial year 
was beginning of the establishment of MTBA’s own 
financial and administration team which will continue 
to be developed into the 2016 financial year. Cycling 
Australia has announced its move to Victoria and MTBA 
has consequently decided to move its head office 
operations to the Gold Coast in Bond University premises 
which will be completed by November 2015. MTBA will 
take responsibility for all accounting functions and is 
looking forward a positive 2015-2016 financial year.

PETER MCKENDRY
Treasurer
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COMMITTEES' REPORT

The committee members present their 
report together with the financial  
report of Mountain Bike Australia Inc.  
(the Association) for the year ended 30 
June 2015 and auditor’s report thereon.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS NAMES

The names of the committee members in office at any 
time during or since the end of the year are:

Russell Baker AM - President

Richard Ovesen - Vice President (Appointed April 2015)

Jodie Willett - Vice President (Resigned December 2014)

David Rusden - Secretary (Resigned November 2014)

Helen Parkes - Secretary (Appointed November 2014)

Phillip McCorkell - Treasurer (Resigned December 2014)

Peter McKendry - Treasurer (Appointed December 2014)

Katherine O’Shea - Professional Representative

Craig Peacock - Professional Representative

Matt Battye - Public Officer (Appointed April 2015)

Anthony Willis - Public Officer (Resigned April 2015)

Shane Currie - Gravity Representative

Owen GWilliam - Observed Trials Representative

Tim Rowe - XC Representative

The committee members have been in office since the 
start of the year to the date of this report unless
otherwise stated.

RESULTS
The deficit for the association for the year after providing 
for income tax amounted to $151,845.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
The association continued to engage in its principal 
activity, the results of which are disclosed in the
attached financial statements.

The net assets of the association decreased from $361,349 
to $209,504 during the financial year.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN STATE OF AFFAIRS
There were no significant changes in the association’s 
state of affairs that occurred during the financial year,  
other than those referred to elsewhere in this report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the association during the year 
was to lead the development and promotion of
mountain biking in Australia for the benefit and 
enjoyment of all mountain bikers.

Signed on behalf of the members of the committee.

Russell Baker AM - President	

Peter McKendry - Treasurer	

Dated this Tenth day of November 2015
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE 2015 2014

$ $

Revenue 2 2,120,440 1,878,835

Less: expenses

Club grants (27,242) (27,000)

Consultants and contractors (326,582) (274,050)

Depreciation 3 (8,000) (5,440)

Employee benefits expense (463,960) (321,381)

Event expenses (349,367) (248,533)

Media and communications (40,506) (19,065)

Operating costs (597,967) (600,896)

Sport and representative programs (458,661) (416,007)

(2,272,285) (1,912,372)

Surplus / (deficit) (151,845) (33,537)

Income tax expense - -

Net surplus / (deficit) from continuing operations (151,845) (33,537)

Other comprehensive income for the year - -

Total comprehensive income	 (151,845) (33,537)
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	 NOTE	 2015		  2014

		  $		  $

Current assets				  

Cash and cash equivalents	 4	 337,381		  440,516	

Receivables	 5	 65,128		  56,620	

Inventories	 6	 56,820		  11,678	

Other financial assets	 7	 50,000		  -

Other assets	 10	 64,770		  28,683	

Total current assets		  574,099		  537,497	

Non current assets				  

Receivables	 5	 50,000		  16,450	

Intangible assets	 9	 29,782		  -

Property, plant and equipment	 8	 23,259		  15,677	

Total non current assets		  103,041		  32,127	

Total assets		  677,140		  569,624	

Current liabilities				  

Payables	 11	 319,469		  138,468	

Provisions	 12	 21,068		  45,720	

Other liabilities	 13	 127,099		  24,087	

Total current liabilities		  467,636		  208,275	

Total liabilities		  467,636		  208,275	

Net assets		  209,504		  361,349	

Members funds				  

Accumulated surplus	 14	 209,504		  361,349	

Total members funds		  209,504		  361,349	

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
This financial report is a special purpose financial report 
prepared in order to satisfy the financial report
preparation requirements of the Associations 
Incorporation Act 1991. The committee has determined 
that the association is not a reporting entity. Mountain 
Bike Australia Inc. is a not-for-profit entity for the
purpose of preparing the financial statements.

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals 
basis and is based on historic costs, which do not take 
into account changing money values or, except where 
specifically stated, current valuations of non-current assets

The financial report was approved by the committee  
as at the date of the committees’ report.

The following specific accounting policies, which are 
consistent with the previous period unless otherwise
stated, have been adopted in the preparation of this 
report:

(a) Revenue

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have passed to the buyer and the costs incurred or to be 
incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured 
reliably. Risks and rewards of ownership are considered 
passed to the buyer at the time of delivery of the goods 
to the customer.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised 
upon the delivery of the service to the customers.

Revenue from organising and hosting events is  
recognised in the period in which the events are held.

Sponsorship revenue is recognised on an accruals basis  
in accordance with the sponsorship agreement.

Interest revenue is recognised when it becomes receivable 
on a proportional basis taking in to account the
interest rates applicable to the financial assets.

Levies and course and camp fees are recognised upon  
the invoice being issued.

Annual membership fees, entry fees, licenses and permits 
and other revenue are recognised when payment
is received. Three year membership fees are recognised  
as revenue over the period of the membership.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and 
services tax (GST).

(b) Contributions - Government Grants and Donations

When the entity receives grants but is obliged to give 
directly approximately equal value to the contributor,
recognition of grant income will be deferred until the 
delivery of service.

(c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and at 
banks, short-term deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less held at call with financial 
institutions, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the 
statement of financial position.

(d) Inventories

Inventories held for sale are measured at the lower  
of cost and net realisable value.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Each class of plant and equipment is carried at cost  
or fair value less, where applicable, any accumulated 
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is measured on the cost basis.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all property, plant and 
equipment is depreciated over their estimated useful
lives commencing from the time the asset is held ready 
for use. Land and the land component of any class
of property, plant and equipment is not depreciated.

(f) Intangibles

Website costs

Website costs are recognised at cost. They are amortised 
over their estimated useful lives of 4 years. Website costs 
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any 
impairment losses.

(f) Impairment of non-financial assets

An impairment loss is recognised where the carrying 
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of an asset is defined as the 
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the 
expected net cash flows which will be received from
the assets employment and subsequent disposal.
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(h) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the association has a legal 
or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for 
which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits 
will result and that outflow can be reliably measured.

(i) Leases

Leases are classified at their inception as either operating 
or finance leases based on the economic substance of the 
agreement so as to reflect the risks and benefits incidental 
to ownership.

OPERATING LEASES

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially 
all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are 
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over  
the term of the lease.

Lease incentives received under operating leases are 
recognised as a liability and amortised on a straightline
basis over the life of the lease term.

(j) Employee benefits

	 (i) Short term employee benefit obligations

	 Liabilities arising in respect of wages and salaries, 
	 annual leave and any other employee benefits expected 
	 to be settled within twelve months of the reporting 
	 date are measured at their nominal amounts based on 
	 remuneration rates which are expected to be paid 
	 when the liability is settled. The expected cost of 
	 shortterm employee benefits in the form of compensated 
	 absences such as annual leave is recognised in the 
	 provision for employee benefits. All other short-term 
	 employee benefit obligations are presented as payables.

	 (ii) Long term employee benefit obligations

	 Liabilities arising in respect of long service leave and 
	 annual leave which is not expected to be settled within 
	 twelve months of the reporting date are measured at 
	 the present value of the estimated future cash outflow 
	 to be made in respect of services provided by 
	 employees up to the reporting date.

	 Employee benefit obligations are presented as current 
	 liabilities if the entity does not have an unconditional 
	 right to defer settlement for at least twelve months 
	 after the reporting date, regardless of when the actual 
	 settlement is expected to occur.

(k) Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and purchased assets are recognised 
net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of 
GST incurred is not recoverable from the Tax Office. In 
these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the 
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the 
expense. Receivables and payables in the statement of 
financial position are shown inclusive of GST.

Cash flows are presented in the statement of cash flows on 
a gross basis, except for the GST component of investing 
and financing activities, which are disclosed as operating 
cash flows.

(l) Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative information has been 
reclassified and repositioned for consistency with
current year disclosures.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
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		  2015		  2014

		  $		  $

NOTE 2: REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Operating revenue			 

Membership fees		  942,777		  832,971	

Grants and other contributions		  309,000		  310,000	

Sponsorship / host fees		  222,039		  64,591	

Licenses and permits		  189,163		  204,093	

IMBA		  -		  125,992	

Course and camp fees		  87,163		  - 

Athlete levies		  130,668		  93,235	

Entry fees		  232,573		  213,801	

Interest received		  6,347		  8,594	

		  2,119,730		  1,853,277	

Other income		  710		  25,558	

Total revenue		  2,120,440		  1,878,835	

NOTE 3: OPERATING SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)

Surplus / (deficit) before income tax has been determined after:			 

Depreciation		  8,000		  5,440	

Bad debts			 

- Trade debtors		  -		  14,187	

- Doubtful debts		  -		  900	

		  -		  15,087	

NOTE 4: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on hand		  300		  300	

Cash at bank		  337,081		  440, 216	

		  337,381		  440, 216	

	

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
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		  2015		  2014

		  $		  $

 
NOTE 5: RECEIVABLES

CURRENT			 

Trade debtors		  42,122		  64,870	

Provision for impairment		  (1,843)		  (11,000)	

		  40,279		  53,870	
Other receivables		  24,849		  2,750	

		  65,128		  56,620	

NON CURRENT			 

Amounts receivable from:			 

- other related body corporates		  50,000		  16,450	

		  50,000		  16,450	

NOTE 6: INVENTORIES

CURRENT				  

At cost				  

Finished goods		  73,320		  28,178

Provision for impairment		  (16,500)		  (16,500)

		  56,820		  11,678	

NOTE 7: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

CURRENT				  

Held to maturity financial assets		
Term deposits		  50,000		  -

		  50,000		  -

NOTE 8: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant and equipment			 

Plant and equipment at cost		  160,150		  144,568	

Accumulated depreciation		  (136,891)		  (128,891)	

Total property, plant and equipment		  23,259		  15,677

NOTE 9: INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Work in progress - website		  29,782		  -	

Total intangible assets		  29,782		  -	

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
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		  2015		  2014

		  $		  $

NOTE 10: OTHER ASSETS

CURRENT			 

Prepayments		  64,770		  28,683	

		  64,770		  28,683	

NOTE 11: PAYABLES
CURRENT			 

Unsecured liabilities			 

Trade creditors		  209,800		  81,338	

GST credits		  60,378		  -

Other payables		  38,458		  1,493	

Accrued expenses		  10,833		  55,637	

		  319,469		  138,468

NOTE 12: PROVISIONS

CURRENT			 

Employee benefits	 (a)	 21,068		  45,720	

		  21,068		  45,720	

(a) Aggregate employee benefits liability		  21,068		  45,720	

 

NOTE 13: OTHER LIABILITIES
CURRENT			 

Athlete levies in advance		  1,099		  12,087	

Membership fees in advance		  6,000		  12,000	

Unexpended grants		  120,000		  -	

		  127,099		  24,087

NOTE 14: ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

Accumulated surplus at beginning of year		  361,349		  394,886	

Net surplus / (deficit)		  (151,845)		  (33,537)	

		  209,504		  361,349	
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE 15: EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE
There has been no matter or circumstance, which has arisen since 30 June 2015 that has significantly
affected or may significantly affect:

(a)	 the operations, in financial years subsequent to 30 June 2015, of the association, or

(b)	 the results of those operations, or

(c)	 the state of affairs, in financial years subsequent to 30 June 2015, of the association.

NOTE 16: ASSOCIATION DETAILS

The principal place of business of the association is:   Level 2, 280 Coward St   MASCOT  NSW  2020

 

STATEMENT BY MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE
The committee has determined that the Association is not  
a reporting entity and that this special purpose financial 
report should be prepared in accordance with the accounting 
policies outlined in Note 1 to the financial statements.

In the opinion of the committee the financial report as set 
out on pages 17 - 24:

1. 	 Presents fairly the financial position of Mountain Bike 
	 Australia Inc. as at 30 June 2015 and performance for 		
	 the year ended on that date.

2. 	 At the date of this statement, there are reasonable 
	 grounds to believe that Mountain Bike Australia 
	 Inc. will be able to pay its debts as and when they 
	 become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution  
of the committee and is signed for and on behalf of
the committee by:

 
Russell Baker AM - President

 
Peter McKendry - Treasurer

	

Dated this Tenth day of November 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS  
OF MOUNTAIN BIKE AUSTRALIA INC.

We have audited the accompanying financial report, 
being a special purpose financial report, of Mountain 
Bike Australia Inc. (the Association), which comprises 
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2015 
and the statement of profit or loss and comprehensive 
income for the year then ended, notes comprising 
income of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information, and the governing  
committee’s declaration.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THOSE CHARGED  
WITH GOVERNANCE
The committee is responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial report and has 
determined that the basis of preparation described in 
Note 1 to the financial report is appropriate to meet the 
requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act 1991 
(ACT) and financial reporting needs of the members. 

The committee’s responsibility also includes such 
internal control as the governing committee determine 
is necessary to enable the preparation and fair 
presentation of a financial report that is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
financial report based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. 
Those standards require that we comply with relevant 
ethical requirements relating to audit engagements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial report is free 
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial report. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
report, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 
control relevant to the Association’s preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial report in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by those 

charged with governance, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion.

INDEPENDENCE
In conducting our audit, we have complied with  
APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants.

OPINION
In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the 
matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
paragraph, the financial report of Mountain Bike 
Australia Inc. as at 30 June 2015 is properly drawn up in 
accordance with the Associations Incorporation Act 1991:

	 (i) 	 so as to give a true and fair view of matters 
	      	 required by section 72 (2) to be dealt with in  
	      	 the financial statements; 

	 (ii) 	 in accordance with the provisions of this Act;and

	 (iii) 	in accordance with proper accounting standards.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to 
Note 1 in the financial report, which describes the basis 
of accounting. The financial report has been prepared 
to assist Mountain Bike Australia Inc. to meet the 
requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act 1991 
(ACT) and the financial reporting needs of the members 
as determined by the governing committee. As a result, 
the financial report may not be suitable for another 
purpose.

Mark Godlewski			   PITCHER PARTNERS

Partner			   SYDNEY

Registered Company Auditor No. 172348

Date 10 November 2015
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AWARD CATEGORY: 
MALE MTB CYCLIST
NOMINEES:

Troy Brosnan

3rd in UCI Downhill World Cup Series

6th in UCI Downhill World Championships

Australian Elite Men Downhill Champion

Jason English

World Solo 24 Hour Mountain Bike Champion

Australian Solo 24 Hour Mountain Bike Champion

A world record equalling 6th World  
Championship title

Jared Graves

One win in Enduro World Series

Three podiums in Enduro World Series

Never finished outside the Top – 10 in  
Enduro World Series

AWARD CATEGORY: 
FEMALE MTB CYCLIST
NOMINEES:

Janine Jungfels

UCI Observed Trials World Champion

Winner Antwerp Observed Trials World Cup

Finished 2nd overall in UCI Observed Trials  
World Cup Series

Australian Observed Trials Champion

Tracey Hannah

Bronze medal Elite Women Downhill  
World Championships

4th Overall in UCI Women Downhill World  
Cup Series

Australian Elite Women Downhill Champion

Emily Parkes

9th in 2015 World Championships Cross Country 	
Eliminator (XCE) (competing against the Elite Women)

Australian U23 Women Cross Country Olympic 
(XCO) Champion

Australian Elite Women Cross Country Eliminator 
(XCE) Champion (competing against the Elite Women)

2015 JAYCO  
CYCLIST OF THE YEAR 

AWARDS 
M O U N TA I N  B I K E  N O M I N E E S

Congratulations to our 2015 Jayco Cyclist of the Year 
Mountain Bike award nominees. Winners will be announced 
at the awards function on 13 November in Melbourne. Riders 
nominated in each category and their 2015 performance 
highlights are listed below.
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AWARD CATEGORY: 
JUNIOR MALE MTB CYCLIST
NOMINEES:

Jackson Frew

Bronze medal UCI World Championships Junior 
Downhill

4th Overall in World Cup Junior Downhill Series

4th Australian Championships Junior Downhill

Andrew Crimmins

2nd Overall in World Cup Junior Downhill Series

Won two World Cups in Junior Downhill

Australian Junior Downhill Champion

Max Warshawsky

9th UCI World Championship Junior Downhill

Bronze medal in Australian Championships  
Junior Downhill

AWARD CATEGORY: 
JUNIOR FEMALE MTB CYCLIST
NOMINEES:

Megan Williams

34th Cross Country Olympic (XCO) World  
Championships

Australian Junior Cross Country Olympic (XCO) 
Champion 

Ebony Tanzen

2nd Australian Junior Cross Country Olympic (XCO) 
Championships

Ellie Wale

6th UCI World Championship Junior Downhill

Australian Junior Downhill Champion

AWARD CATEGORY: 
MALE MASTERS MTB CYCLIST
NOMINEES:

Peter Selkrig

2nd World Solo 24 Hour Championships 50-54 age 
category

Brad Clarke

16th World Masters Championships Cross Country 
Olympic (XCO) 35-39 age category

Australian Champion Cross Country Olympic (XCO) 
Masters 1-2 Men

Craig Peacock

4th World Masters Championships Cross Country 
Olympic (XCO) 55-59 age category

4th in Australian Championships Cross Country 
Olympic (XCO) Masters 5-6 Men

AWARD CATEGORY: 
FEMALE MASTERS MTB CYCLIST
NOMINEES:

Karen Evans

5th World Masters Championships Cross Country 
Olympic (XCO) 45-49 age category

Australian Champion Cross Country Olympic (XCO) 
Master 3-4 Women

Sharon Heap

Australian Champion Cross Country Olympic (XCO) 
Masters 5+ Women

Donna Dall

5th World Masters Championships Cross Country 
Olympic (XCO) 40-44 age category

2nd Australian Championships Cross Country Olympic 
(XCO) Masters 3-4 Women
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Mountain Biking in the ACT has continued to grow in 
2015. Races for the ‘traditional’ codes of XC and DH 
were well attended, but the new codes of Cyclocross 
and Enduro not only gave riders more variety, they 
attracted new riders to races, indicating the changing 
desires of the market. The challenge for CORC is to 
adjust the calendar for the market.

As riding changed, so has access to trails. CORC 
has supported the establishment of a new trail 
network at Pine Island in Tuggeranong under the 
custodianship of the Tuggeranong Trail Rats and the 
reestablishment of the trail network in Majura Pines, 
under the custodianship of the Majura Pines Trail 
Alliance. Bruce Ridge is close to being finalised and 
formalised, thanks to the hard work of the Friends of 
Bruce Ridge. In a great show of support for trails, the 
Kowalski Brothers scored an Volunteering  
ACT award for their work at Kowen Forest. 

CORC continues to work on trail access to a number 
of old and new areas, hopefully we’ll start work in 
some new trails in new locations once the Scott 24 
Hour is done for the year.

The final ‘big thing’ for 2015 is the release of the  
ACT Government’s ‘Mountain Biking in the ACT  
2015-2025’ strategy. CORC was invited to comment  
on this strategy and we have provided feedback 
to the Government. We’ll let you all know via our 
website and Facebook once the Strategy is released 
for wider community consultation.

BRENDAN MULLOY
ACT Representative

ACT
R E P R E S E N TAT I V E  R E P O R T 
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The NSW MTB scene 
in 2015 has seen an 
increasing number of 
events available to 
compete in.  There 
seems to be an event 
every weekend 
somewhere in the 
State, and it has been 
good to see the 

EvoCities enduro series being held around regional 
NSW centres.    Between our thriving Clubs and the 
private promoters, there are events for all styles and 
tastes.

In 2015 there has been a well-attended State 
Downhill series – but again no series for Cross 
Country.  With so many other XC races available, 
holding a financially viable XCO series is problematic.

In the Trails area, we have seen some good advances, 
with the NPWS completing new MTB trails in the 
Bantry Bay area of northern Sydney.  This has been an 
important step for NPWS.   The Illawarra Mountain 
Bike Alliance has been a great illustration of how 

local groups can bring fantastic proposals forward.   
It may take a few years to reach fruition, but the 
result could be of international standard.

There have been a number of Level 1 Coaching 
courses held in NSW/ACT over the year.  This should 
lead to a great number of Level 1 and Level 2 coaches 
being available to help juniors and new riders.

In the junior area, NSW has been very successful 
during 2014 with a number being selected for MTBA 
Junior Australian teams.  The 7th JetBlack NSW All 
Schools XC Championship was to be held in June, but 
was postponed due to wet weather.  At that time 
over 230 young riders were registered.  It will now be 
held in late November 2015.

RAY RICE
NSW Representative

NSW
R E P R E S E N TAT I V E  R E P O R T 
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As a newer representative to MTBA I will do my  
best to convey my understanding of the industry  
in Southern Queensland for use in the MTBA  
Annual Report.

Trail development has for a long time been a 
grassroots project with local groups building when 
permitted on public lands. The southern Queensland 
community is patiently waiting on a final plan and 
design in regards to the 2018 Commonwealth Games. 
Final budget for development of the Nerang Forest is 
to my knowledge not finalized but have heard that 
more than one million in trail development with be 
completed for a UCI legal cross country race course. 
Many local clubs and groups desire involvement, 
volunteering labour efforts to complete the project. 
It is unlcear if the Gold Coast Council will contract 
outside groups or look local for the work. 

The official 2015 Cyclocross season was from what I 
experienced a slow growing community and rooted 
mostly in Brisbane. I received multiple inquiries 
from groups north of Brisbane requesting MTBA’s 

involvement in local and regional race series and 
feel that MTBA is preferred over other sanctioning 
groups. These requests were passed onto MTBA’s 
main office for further detailed information and 
proper process. I feel that this is a good potential 
in the coming years for MTBA to reach out to these 
small communities of Cyclocross clubs to build 
memberships. 

2015 has been the year of the mountain bike as far 
as retail sales go. I’ve seen more and more interested 
into bigger travel enduro travel bikes. Sales of 
120mm -140mm travel trail bikes are still dominant as 
most people would consider themselves normal trail 
riders and are looking for the most versatile bike. 

CHUCK GARTRELL
QLD Representative

QLD
R E P R E S E N TAT I V E  R E P O R T 
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 What an 
amazing year 
for Mountain 
Bike and 
Cyclocross  
in Victoria.
Australia’s first 
ever mountain bike 

summit at Mount Buller commenced a great year for 
mountain biking in the state.

Approximately 350 delegates from across Australia 
came to take part in an exciting weekend of trail 
building, advocacy, and management presentations 
backed up by mountain bike media representation 
from electronic to hard copy. The summit direction 
was to introduce and include all aspects of mountain 
bike culture past present and future with the focus of 
bringing together the learnings of many to improve 
the voice of mountain biking at state and federal 
government level. Sustainable trail building, event 
management and media were the strong points of 
the summit. Included were supported rides down 
the famous Copperhead and Delatite trail networks. 
Mountain Bike Australia sponsored delegates to 
attend the summit to show the new look MTBA 
and introduce Shane Coppin to the masses. Shane 
being offered the final presentation to the summit 
delivered to the delegates a presentation that settled 
what was anticipated to be a potentially hostile 
audience. Shane spoke of openness and transparency 
through a consultative MTBA and presented a vision 
of the future which immediately showed leadership 
to the audience. 

After recently completing my level 2 mountain 
bike coach qualification along with Jodie Willett 
in 2014 the goal for Jodie, Evan and myself was 
to create an exciting new direction with State 
based Junior Development Camps. This has been 
in planning for some years and 2014 marked the 
start of something big. In Victoria this year I have 
worked with MTBA to provide a National strategy 
to introduce as many junior athletes and trainee 
coaches to structured mountain bike camps. The 

success of these camps relied on clubs coaches and 
athletes all communicating successfully ensuring the 
development of a sustainable future for mountain 
biking. The success is represented in the increase 
of junior memberships and underpinned by the 
attendance of 90 junior athletes and 27 trainee 
coaches over 3 Victorian Junior Development Camps 
this year. The development continues with the trainee 
coaches becoming qualified and taking the camps 
structure back to their respective clubs and creating a 
new level of junior development with clubs reporting 
junior attendance at skills days numbering up to 80 
junior participants on a regular basis. The camps are 
now being run out nationally under MTBA leadership 
with NSW, QLD, SA and WA all having delivered at 
least 1 camp with TAS due to run their first whilst this 
information goes to print. Exciting times!

Trails and sustainability has been tackled headlong 
down on the peninsula by Red Hill Riders with 
their efforts being recognised through local council 
support to develop a major mountain bike park 
under the Arthur’s Seat Adventure Park vision. 
(Check the vision and like on FB) This is a fantastic 
example of club persistence lead by Mark Gardner 
(RHR president) and the strong RHR Club. Well done 
Red Hill Riders on a dream becoming true for the 
peninsula. I asked Mark about the success of the 
project and how we can use this information for the 
future with Mark acknowledging Russell Baker as 
a great sounding board when at times it appeared 
all too big. Great work Pres! We will watch this 
development as it continues. There are many new 
trails networks with applications and consultation 
processes continuing to be delivered to government 
departments by Victorian mountain bike clubs 
seeking understanding and support to build on the 
mountain bike experience.

Cyclocross was coming and as I type this the last CX 
event for the Victorian Cyclocross series has been 
run and won. With record numbers of riders across 
all fields this season we are faced with the build it 
and they will come situation. That which commenced 
with Dirty Deeds CX of past years has exploded across 
the state with Fields of Joy at Essendon becoming a 
national benchmark in Cyclocross for 2015. Victoria 
has hosted 2 rounds of the national CX series and 

VICTORIAN
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also hosted through Fields of Joy the National Cyclocross 
Championships. Rounds of the Victorian Series have also been 
held for the first time in rural Victoria at Mt Beauty and Oxley 
where metro moved out of town for the weekend to North 
East Victoria. This was great to see and I hope it continues into 
2016 and beyond.

So where to now? I hear you asking. We will continue to see 
the expansion of our Victorian trails networks and eagerly 
await final news about Arthurs Seat and keep our fingers 
crossed that the gondola with bike racks planned for the 
Seat will gain some momentum with less opposition making 
the Peninsula a place of excellence in state, national and 
international mountain biking.

Junior development will continue to be placed at the 
forefront of Victoria’s sport sustainability plan leading to 
the possibility of creating a state based team for national 
championships in 2017 when Victorians are faced with 
interstate travel to National Championships.

We wait to hear the plans for Cyclocross in 2016/17 where as 
a state we hold 3 of the 4 internationally recognised medals 
available at National Cyclocross Championships: Paul Van 
Der Ploeg (Elite Men), Lisa Jacobs (Elite Women) and Ben 
Walkerden (Junior Men 19)

The Mountain Bike Australia shift from Sydney to Gold Coast 
will no doubt be on the mind of many Victorians and I will 
be working to try and build a strong connection from the 
Victorian clubs to MTBA head office to enable us to keep 
getting it done.

 
GREG MEYLAND 
VICTORIA State Representative
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It has been a 
massive year 
for mountain 
biking in WA 
from a number 
of different 
perspectives.

WAMBA AND WESTCYCLE
The West Australian Mountain Bike Association have 
been doing some great work, particularly the president 
Louise Wallace and secretary Jodie Stembridge. 
WAMBA are the peak body for mountain biking in WA. 
They have a lot of mountain bike related programs 
on the go, most of which are building blocks for 
the future on mountain biking in WA. They are also 
working closely with Westcycle, the peak body for all 
of cycling in WA.

Westcycle’s CEO Matt Fulton and WAMBA have been 
proactive in gaining funding to employ people in the 
office to specifically work on some of the mountain 
bike projects.

You may have already heard that on top of the 
employment positions mentioned above, WAMBA and 
Westcycle have been awarded $450 000 over 3 years 
to be spent on mountain biking. Mainly getting more 
people mountain biking.

MOUNTAIN BIKE EVENTS
The events calendar has been chock a block full and 
the riders have been spoilt for choice. But this has also 
meant that the numbers have been spread out and 
some events haven’t hit their target numbers. In fact 
some events haven’t even run because of this

The Calendar has consisted of the following disciplines

	 XC series

	 DH series

	 GE series

	 CX series

	 Marathon races

	 Stage races

We are honored though to have been awarded 3 
national round statuses for the year as well.

	 Pemberton XCO Double Header National Rounds, 
	 and again in 2016.

	 GE National Round at the Goat Farm

	 Dwellingup 100 National Marathon Round

XC SERIES
We still have a club run series that has 7 races.  
The best 6 races counts towards points and riders  
must do at least 4 races to qualify. We encourage riders 
to be members of MTBA, but also stipulate that a rider 
MUST be a member of MTBA to eligible for end of 
season points and prizes.

To go with the XC series, we developed a set of rules 
and guidelines for both the race organizers and the 
competitors.

DH SERIES
The Peel Districts MTB Club runs the state DH series, 
which includes 5 rounds and a State Championships 
race. They also run an “Enduro” style gravity series and 
skills development days to encourage participation in 
downhill racing. In the last 12 months, the club has 
significantly increased the average number of women 
in their races from 1 or 2 up to 6 or 7 at every race. 

WORLD CHAMPS
Another highlight for WA was having 3 athletes 
selected for world champs.

	 Sam Hill = DH

	 Jordan Prochyra = DH (Of which PDMBC 
	 contributed $2000)

	 Reece Tucknott = XCO

WA  
R E P O R T 
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JUNIOR DEVELOPMENT
WA have also hosted 2 of the MTBA Junior Development 
Camps, 1 in Perth and 1 in Pemberton. These have been run 
under the guidance of Mark Wardle from Rock and Roll 
MTB and Evan James from MTBA. 

The Southwest MTB Club, Perth MTB club, Kalamunda 
Collective, Rock and Roll MTB, Dunsborough, Burrup, 
Albany, Dwellingup and most others are all running some 
sort of junior program as well.

Rock and Roll MTB are also doing quite a number of  
school programs through their out door education 
programs. They also do a women’s only ride once a week.

JUNIOR STATE TEAM
Through WAMBA and Westcycle we have also developed 
a selection policy for picking juniors to make up a state 
team to travel to the MTB nationals together. We have 
application forms, policy documents and a selection panel. 
The applications close after both the DH and XCO state 
championships are run. This will be the third year WA have 
assembled a team for the nationals.

MASTER PLAN
A master plan to outline the best places and strategies 
for trail development in the South West region is now 
complete and soon to be officially launched. There is also a 
master plan being developed for the Perth and Peel region. 
There is a lot hinging on these plans and the Department 
of Parks and Wildlife are a key stakeholder in the plan and 
will use it as a guide to allocate resources for further trail 
development projects. 

Unfortunately, while the master plan is good and positive 
work, there is a number of illegal trails still popping up 
around our Perth Hills. We know this happening all over 
Australia, and working on the relationships between all of 
the people involved is surely a key starting point to helping 
this problem.

Having proactive bodies like WAMBA looking after these 
projects, dealing with DPaW and government departments 
is also good for the sport.

TONY TUCKNOTT 
MTBA Representative for WA
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ROLE	 NAME

PRESIDENT	 RUSSELL BAKER (ACT)

VICE PRESIDENT	 RICHARD OVESEN (VIC)

SECRETARY	 HELEN PARKES

TREASURER	 PETER MCKENDRY

PUBLIC OFFICER	 MATT BATTYE

PROFESSIONAL APPOINTMENT	 CRAIG PEACOCK

PROFESSIONAL APPOINTMENT	 KATHERINE OSHEA

CROSS-COUNTRY REP	 TIM ROWE

GRAVITY REP	 SHANE CURRIE

OBSERVED TRIALS REP	 OWEN GWILLAM

STATE REPRESENTATIVES	  

VIC	 GREG MEYLAND

ACT	 BRENDON MULLOY

NSW	 RAY RICE

NT	 JOHN PYPER

WA	 TONY TUCKNOTT

QLD	 CHUCK GARTRELL

MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE

M T B A
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SHANE COPPIN 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
OFFICER

DENISE COX 
OPERATIONS MANAGER

JODIE WILLETT 
JUNIOR  
DEVELOPMENT 
COACH

EVAN JAMES 
JUNIOR DEVELOPMENT  
COORDINATOR

ANDREW NEWTON 
EVENTS  
COORDINATOR

UNA MCKAY 
EVENTS  
COORDINATOR

JESS HOGAN
EVENTS COORDINATOR  
(TO FEB 2015)

CLAIRE BRINKLEY  
COMMUNICATIONS  
COORDINATOR

JOLENE CULLEN 
SPORTS PROGRAM  
MANAGER  
(TO JUNE 2015)

KATIE DIMON
COMMISSARIES  
P/T

STUART PLANT  
COMMUNICATIONS  
MANAGER  
(TO MARCH 2015)

CYCLING AUSTRALIA  
ADMINSTRATION TEAM 
MEMBERSHIPS

MTBA  
S TA F F 
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 WORLD RESULTS
2 0 1 5

ROUND 2 WOMEN

1.Tracy Moseley 	 GBR

2.Anne Caroline Chausson 	 FRA

3.Cecile Ravanel 	 FRA 

ROUND 3 WOMEN

1.Tracy Moseley 	 GBR

2.Anne Caroline Chausson 	 FRA

3.Cecile Ravanel 	 FRA

ROUND 4 MEN

1.Richie Rude 	 USA

2. Nicolas VOUILLOZ 	 FRA

3. Fabien BAREL 	 FRA

6.Jared Graves 	 AUS

31.Josh Carlson 	 AUS

73.Dylan Wolsky 	 AUS

ROUND 5 MEN

1.Jared Graves 	 AUS

2.Nicolas Vouilloz 	 FRA

3.Francois Bailly-Maitre 	 FRA

27.Josh Carlson 	 AUS

43.Ben Forbes 	 AUS

53.Lindsay Klein 	 AUS

64. Isaac Denny 	 AUS

81.Tim McCollough 	 AUS

98.Dylan Wolsky 	 AUS

ROUND 6 MEN

1.Richie Rude 	 USA

2.Yoann Barelli 	 FRA

3.Jared Graves 	 AUS

24.Josh Carlson 	 AUS

40.Dylan Wolsky 	 AUS

42.Shane Gayton 	 AUS

66.David Harder 	 AUS

74.Isaac Denny 	 AUS

79.Ben Forbes 	 AUS

80.Lindsay Klein 	 AUS

89.Tim McCollough 	 AUS

95.Shaun Fry 	 AUS 

ROUND 4 WOMEN

1.Tracy Moseley 	 GBR

2.Cecile Ravanel 	 FRA

3.Anneke Beerten 	 NED

ROUND 5 WOMEN

1.Anneke Beerten 	 NED

2.Cecile Ravanel 	 FRA

3.Kelli Emmett

13.Megan Rose 	 AUS

31.Kylie Maduna 	 AUS

ROUND 6 WOMEN

1.Tracy Moseley 	 GBR

2.Cecile Ravanel 	 FRA

3.Isabeau Courdurier 	 FRA

14.Leonie Picton 	 AUS

27.Jaclyn Delacroix	 AUS

32.Simmone Lyons 	 AUS

2015 WORLD ENDURO SERIES
	

ROUND 1 MEN

1. Jerome Clementz 	 FRA

2. Fabien Barel 	 FRA

3. Wyn Masters 	 NZL

10. Sam Hill 	 AUS

18. Josh Carlson 	 AUS

68. Lindsay Klein 	 AUS

69. Dylan Wolsky 	 AUS

71. Ben Forbes 	 AUS

84. Simon Buzacott 	 AUS

93. Tim McCullough 	 AUS

94.Isaac Denny 	 AUS 

ROUND 2 MEN

1. Greg Callaghan 	 IRL

2.Justin Leov 	 NZL

3.Richie Rude 	 USA

14.Josh Carlson

69.Dylan Wolsky 	 AUS

ROUND 3 MEN

1. Justin Leov 	 NZL

2.Florian Nicolai 	 FRA

3.Greg Callaghan 	 IRL

9.Josh Carlson 	 AUS

34.Troy Brosnan 	 AUS

61.Dylan Wolsky 	 AUS

ROUND 1 WOMEN

1.Anne Caroline Chausson 	FRA

2.Tracy Moseley 	 GBR

3.Cecile Ravanel 	 FRA

26.Megan Rose 	 AUS

32. Genevieve McKew 	 AUS

35. Rosemary Barnes 	 AUS
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2015 MOUNTAIN BIKE WORLD CUP				    	
LOURDES, FRANCE - 12TH - 13TH APRIL 2015						   
			 

2015 MOUNTAIN BIKE WORLD CUP				    	
NOVE MESTO NA MORAVE, CZECH REPUBLIC - 23RD - 24TH MAY 2015		
							    

ELITE MEN DHI ROUND 1

1.Aaron Gwin 	 USA 	 2:58.691

2.Loic Bruni 	 FRA 	 3:02.646

3.Michael Jones 	 GBR 	 3:05.096

8.Troy Brosnan 	 AUS 	 3:06.787

20.Dean Lucas 	 AUS 	 3:09.961

35.Michael Hannah 	 AUS 	 3:12.859

71.Connor Fearon 	 AUS 	 3:24.089

ELITE MEN XCO ROUND 1

1.Jaroslav  Kulhavy 	 CZE 	 1:33:27

2.Nino Schurter 	 SUI 	 1:33:51

3.Julien Absalon 	 FRA 	 1:34:43

11.Daniel McConnell 	 AUS 	 1:37:44

89.Cameron Ivory 	 AUS 

ELITE MEN XCO OVERALL 

1.Nino Schurter 	 SUI 	 1350p

2.Julien Absalon 	 FRA 	 1110p

3.Jaroslav Kulhavy 	 CZE 	 932p

14.Daniel McConnell 	 AUS 	 486p 

U23 MEN XCO ROUND 1

1.Lars Forster 	 SUI 	 1:22:20

2.Pablo Rodriguez Guede ESP 	 1:22:37

3.Andri Frischkenecht 	 SUI 	 1:23:05

U23 MEN XCO OVERALL

1.Titouan Carod 	 FRA 	 362p

2.Pablo Rodriguez Guede ESP 	 332p

3.Howard Grotts 	 USA 	 295p

41.Scott Bowden 	 AUS 	 7p

48.Ben Bradley 	 AUS 	 2p

U19 MEN DHI ROUND 1

1.Andrew Crimmins 	 AUS 	 3:10.159

2.Laurie Greenland 	 GBR 	 3:10.462

3.Jackson Frew 	 AUS 	 3:11.803

7.Max Warshawsky 		  3:16.306

16.Remy Morton 	 AUS 	 3:24.468

ELITE WOMEN XCO ROUND 1

1.Jolanda Neff 	 SUI 	 1:34:29

2.Gunn-Rita Dahle Flesjaa NOR 	 1:34:30 

3.Pauline Ferrand Prevot FRA 	 1:36:08

8.Rebecca Henderson 	 AUS 	 1:37:48

27.Peta Mullens 	 AUS 	 1:42:19

ELITE WOMEN XCO OVERALL 

1.Jolanda Neff 	 SUI 	 1300p

2.Gunn-Rita Dahle-Flesjaa NOR 	 910p

3.Lea Davison 	 USA 	 820p

25.Rebecca Henderson 	 AUS 	 314p

35.Peta Mullens 	 AUS 	 173p

94.Sarah Riley 	 AUS 	 12p

96.Eliza Kwan 	 AUS 	 12p

U23 WOMEN XCO ROUND 1

1.Jenny Rissveds 	 SWE 	 1:17:18 

2.Margot Moschetti 	 FRA 	 1:18:00

3.Kate Courtney 	 USA 	 1:18:27

39.Emily Parkes 	 AUS 	 1:28:49

47.Holly Harris 	 AUS 	 1:34:29 

U23 WOMEN XCO OVERALL

1.Jenny Rissveds 	 SWE 	 540p

2.Alessandra Keller 	 SUI 	 350p

3.Lisa Rabensteiner 	 ITA 	 273p

ELITE WOMEN DHI ROUND 1 

1.Emmeline Ragot 	 FRA 	 3:32.625

2.Rachel Atherton 	 GBR	  3:34.685

3.Myriam Nicole 	 FRA 	 3:35.133

5.Tracey Hannah 	 AUS 	 3:42.751

10.Tegan Molloy 	 AUS 	 3:54.5

ELITE MEN DHI OVERALL

1.Aaron Gwin 	 USA 	 1329p

2.Loic Bruni 	 FRA 	 1059p

3.Troy Brosnan 	 AUS 	 1013p

12.Dean Lucas 	 AUS 	 515p

13.Connor Fearon 	 AUS 	 500p

45.Michael Hannah 	 AUS 	 210p

75.Samuel Hill 	 AUS 	 107p

U19 MEN DHI OVERALL

1.Laurie Greenland 	 GBR	  320p

2.Andrew Crimmins 	 AUS 	 245p

ELITE WOMEN DHI OVERALL

1.Rachel Atherton 	 GBR 	 1660p

2.Manon Carpenter 	 GBR 	 1079p

3.Tahnee Seagrave 	 GBR 	 986p

4.Tracey Hannah 	 AUS 	 907p

13.Tegan Molloy 	 AUS 	 265p

3.Jacob Dickson 	 IRL 	 168p

8.Jackson Frew 	 AUS 	 90p

11.Max Warshawsky	 AUS 	 44p

16.Remy Morton 	 AUS 	 24p

17.Joel Willis 	 AUS 	 20p
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 WORLD RESULTS
2 0 1 5

2015 MOUNTAIN BIKE WORLD CUP				    	
LEOGANG, AUSTRIA - 13TH - 14TH JUNE 2015						   
			 

2015 MOUNTAIN BIKE WORLD CUP				    	
LENZERHEIDE, SWITZERLAND - 4TH - 5TH JULY 2015						   
			 

ELITE MEN DHI ROUND 3

1.Aaron Gwin 	 USA 	 3:34.354

2.Connor Fearon 	 AUS 	 3:34.399

3.Remi Thirion 	 FRA 	 3:35.684

4.Troy Brosnan 	 AUS 	 3:35.923

24.Dean Lucas 	 AUS 	 3:43.546

ELITE MEN XCO ROUND 3

1.Jaroslav Kulhavy 	 CZE 	 1:29:00

2.Nino Schurter  	 SUI 	 1:29:33

3.Ondrej Cink 	 CZE 	 1:30:47

25.Daniel McConnell 	 AUS 	 1:34:45

U23 MEN XCO ROUND 3

1.Lars Forster 	 SUI 	 1:18:14

2.Titouan Carod 	 FRA 	 1:19:07

3.Howard Grotts 	 USA 	 1:19:07

74.Sebastian Jayne 	 AUS 

84.Tasman Nankervis

87.Russel Nankervis

U19 MEN DHI ROUND 3

1.Andrew Crimmins 	 AUS 	 3:42.706

2.Jacob Dickson 	 IRL 	 3:45.793

3.Laurie Greenland 	 GBR 	 3:46.068

5.Jackson Frew 	 AUS 	 3:50.811

8.Max Warshawsky 	 AUS 	 3:52.206

30.Remy Morton 	 AUS 	 5:29.231

ELITE MEN DHI ROUND 4

1.Greg Minnaar 	 RSA 	 3:00.535

2.Loic Bruni 	 FRA 	 3:01.495

3.Dean Lucas 	 AUS 	 3:02.342

4.Troy Brosnan 	 AUS 	 3:02.862

57.Samuel Hill 	 AUS 	 3:12.328

76.Connor Fearon 	 AUS 	 4:22.043

U19 MEN DHI ROUND 4

1.Laurie Greenland 	 GBR 	 3:05:884

2.Andrew Crimmins 	 AUS 	 3:10.641

3.Alex Marin Trillo 	 ESP 	 3:12.260

9.Remy Morton 	 AUS 	 3:18.577

26.Max Warshawsky 	 AUS 	 4:16.342

ELITE WOMEN DHI ROUND 3

1.Rachel Atherton 	 GBR 	 4:04.108

2.Tahnee Seagrave 	 GBR 	 4:07.126

3.Emmeline Ragot 	 FRA 	 4:07.279

6.Tracey Hannah 	 AUS 	 4:15.055

15.Tegan Molloy 	 AUS 	 4:36.617

ELITE WOMEN XCO ROUND 3

1.Gunn-Rita Dahle Flesjaa NOR 	 1:32:15

2.Lea Davison 	 USA 	 1:33:15

3.Catharine Pendrel 	 CAN 	 1:33:51

U23 WOMEN XCO ROUND 3

1.Jenny Rissveds 	 SWE 	 1:24:53

2.Ramona Forchini 	 SUI 	 1:25:25

3.Lisa Rabensteiner 	 ITA 	 1:25:46

ELITE WOMEN DHI ROUND 4

1.Rachel Atherton 	 AUS 	 3:28.126

2.Manon Carpenter 	 AUS GBR 3:33.132

3.Tracey Hannah 	 AUS 	 3:35.406

16.Tegan Molloy 	 AUS 	 4:00.580
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ELITE WOMEN XCO ROUND 5

1.Pauline Ferrand Prevot 	 FRA 	 1:33:25

2.Jolanda Neff 	 SUI 	 1:34:53

3.Annika Langvad 	 DEN 	 1:35:34

U23 WOMEN XCO ROUND 5

1.Jenny Rissveds 	 SWE 	 1:14:18

2.Margot Moschetti 	 FRA 	 1:18:00

3.Lisa Rabensteiner 	 ITA 	 1:20:35

ELITE WOMEN DHI ROUND 6

1.Rachel Atherton 	 GBR	  3:00.72

2.Manon Carpenter 	 GBR 	 3:10.08

3.Tahnee Seagrave	 GBR 	 3:12.85

4.Tracey Hannah 	 AUS 	 3:13.66

14.Tegan Molloy 	 AUS 	 3:27.70

ELITE WOMEN XCO ROUND 4

1.Jolanda Neff 	 SUI 	 1:28:15

2.Catharine Pendrel 	 CAN 	 1:28:49

3.Pauline Ferrand Prevot 	 FRA 	 1:29:24

33.Rebecca Henderson 	 AUS 	 1:42:31

38.Peta Mullens 	 AUS 

U23 WOMEN XCO ROUND 4

1.Jenny Rissveds 	 SWE 	 1:18:52

2.Alessandra Keller 	 SUI 	 1:19:52

3.Alice Barnes 	 GBR 	 1:20:09

ELITE WOMEN DHI ROUND 5

1.Rachel Atherton 	 GBR 	 5:03.67

2.Manon Carpenter 	 GBR 	 5:07.09

3.Myriam Nicole 	 FRA 	 5:07.29

8.Tracey Hannah 	 AUS 	 5:21.11

14.Tegan Molloy 	 AUS 	 5:49.27

ELITE MEN XCO ROUND 4

1.Nino Schurter 	 SUI 	 1:27:19

2.Julien Absalon 	 FRA 	 1:27:33

3.Florian Vogel 	 SUI 	 1:28:54

19.Daniel McConnell 	 AUS 	 1:32:19

63.Cameron Ivory 	 AUS 

U23 MEN XCO ROUND 4

1.Titouan Carod 	 FRA 	 1:15:18

2.Howard Grotts 	 USA 	 1:15:44

3.Victor Koretzky 	 FRA 	 1:16:18

21.Scott Bowden 	 AUS 	 1:23:36

24.Ben Bradley 	 AUS 	 1:25:04

35.Chris Hamilton 	 AUS 	 1:28:50

ELITE MEN XCO ROUND 5

1.Nino Schurter 	 SUI 	 1:30:55

2.Julien Absalon	 FRA 	 1:30:59

3.Manuel Fumic 	 GER 	 1:31:22

5.Daniel McConnell 	 AUS 	 1:32:09

56.Cameron Ivory

U23 MEN XCO ROUND 5

1.Victor Koretzky 	 FRA 	 1:18:10

2.Titouan Carod 	 FRA 	 1:18:51

3.Pablo Rodriguez Guede ESP 	 1:19:23

26.Chris Hamilton 	 AUS 	 1:26:00

27.Scott Bowden 	 AUS 	 1:26:01

32.Ben Bradley 	 AUS 	 1:27:09

34.Reece Tucknott 	 AUS 	 1:28:01

ELITE MEN DHI ROUND 5

1.Josh Bryceland 	 GBR 	 4:22.15

2.Loic Bruni 	 FRA 	 4:22.35

3.Troy Brosnan 	 AUS 	 4:22.38

18.Dean Lucas 	 AUS 	 4:33.34

20.Samuel Hill 	 AUS	  4:35.03

44.Michael Hannah 	 AUS 	 4:40.44

52.Connor Fearon 	 AUS 	 4:43.41

53.Jordan Prochyra 	 AUS 	 4:43.42

66.David McMillan 	 AUS 	 4:49.22

67.Carl Pickersgill 	 AUS 	 4:49.37

70.Aiden Varley 	 AUS 	 4:51.01

U19 MEN DHI ROUND 5

1.Laurie Greenland 	 GBR 	 4:31.57

2.Alex Marin Trillo 	 ESP 	 4:38.24

3.Andrew Crimmins 	 AUS 	 4:39.1

10.Joel Willis 	 AUS 	 4:43.01

11.Jackson Frew 	 AUS 	 4:46.44

12.Max Warshawsky 	 AUS 	 4:47.94

17.Remy Morton 	 AUS 	 4:55.48

26.Harry Bush 	 AUS 	 5:05.84

ELITE MEN DHI ROUND 6

1.Aaron Gwin 	 USA 	 2:38:10

2.Greg Minnaar 	 RSA 	 2:41.61

3.Loris Vergier 	 FRA 	 2:42.39

6.Troy Brosnan 	 AUS 	 2:44.02

15.Dean Lucas 	 AUS 	 2:45.66

18.Michael Hannah 	 AUS 	 2:46.2

25.Connor Fearon 	 AUS 	 2:47.43

76.Samuel Hill 	 AUS 	 3:13.39

U19 MEN DHI ROUND 6

1.Laurie Greenland 	 GBR 	 2:49.91

2.Jacob Dickson 	 IRL 	 2:50.61

3.Neil Stewart	 GBR 	 2:50.91

5.Jackson Frew 	 AUS 	 2:51.50

6.Andrew Crimmins 	 AUS 	 2:51.46

10.Joel Willis 	 AUS 	 2:54.31

16.Harry Bush	 AUS 	 3:00.31

2015 MOUNTAIN BIKE WORLD CUP				    	
MONT SEINT-ANNE, CANADA - 1ST - 2ND AUGUST 2015

2015 MOUNTAIN BIKE WORLD CUP				    	
WINDHAM, USA - 8TH - 9TH AUGUST 2015
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 WORLD RESULTS
2 0 1 5

2015 MOUNTAIN BIKE WORLD CUP				    	
VAL DI SOLE, ITALY - 22ND - 23RD AUGUST 2015						   
			 
ELITE MEN XCO ROUND 6

1.Nino Schurter 	 SUI 	 1:27:38

2.Julien Absalon 	 FRA 	 1:27:43

3.Florian Vogel 	 SUI 	 1:28:00

32.Daniel McConnell 	 AUS 	 1:32:05

68.Cameron Ivory 	 AUS 	 1:37:19

89.Brendan Johnston 	 AUS 

U23 MEN XCO ROUND 6

1.Grant Ferguson 	 GBR 	 1:18:31

2.Titouan Carod 	 FRA 	 1:18:57

3.Howard Grotts 	 USA 	 1:20:12

24.Scott Bowden 	 AUS 	 1:25:41

31.Chris Hamilton 	 AUS 	 1:26:30

34.Ben Bradley 	 AUS 	 1:26:45

59.Reece Tucknott 	 AUS 	 1:28:52

ELITE MEN DHI ROUND 7

1.Aaron Gwin 	 USA 	 3:31.92

2.Loic Bruni 	 FRA 	 3:33.51

3.Troy Brosnan 	 AUS 	 3:33.77

16.Dean Lucas 	 AUS 	 3:40.69

21.Connor Fearon 	 AUS 	 3:41.65

40.Michael Hannah 	 AUS 	 3:45.24

68.Sam Hill 	 AUS 	 3:52.13

U19 MEN DHI ROUND 7

1.Loris Revelli 	 ITA 	 3:44.953

2.Jacob Dickson 	 IRL 	 3:46.167

3.Laurie Greenland 	 GBR 	 3:46.779

4.Andrew Crimmins 	 AUS 	 3:47.738

9.Jackson Frew 	 AUS 	 3:53.942

12.Max Warshawsky 	 AUS 	 3:57.572

14.Remy Morton 	 AUS 	 3:58.625

ELITE WOMEN XCO ROUND 6

1.Annika Langvad 	 DEN 	 1:30:56

2.Jolanda Neff 	 SUI 	 1:31:53

3.Irina Kalentyeva 	 RUS 	 1:32:10

U23 WOMEN XCO ROUND 6

1.Jenny Rissveds 	 SWE 	 1:19:40

2.Alessandra Keller 	 SUI 	 1:19:54

3.Lisa Rabensteiner 	 ITA 	 1:20:42

ELITE WOMEN DHI ROUND 7

1.Rachel Atherton 	 GBR 	 4:08.636

2.Myriam Nicole 	 FRA 	 4:10.875

3.Manon Carpenter 	 GBR 	 4:15.080

5.Tracey Hannah 	 AUS 	 4:22.614

14.Tegan Molloy 	 AUS 	 4:41.193
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MEN

1.Alban LAKATA 	 AUT 	 4:24:46

2.Christoph SAUSER 	 SUI 	 4:26:53

3.Hector Leonardo 	 COL 	 4:27:08 
   PAEZ LEON

79.Morgan PILLEY 	 AUS 	 5:24:43

4X MEN

1. Aiko GÖHLER 	 GER

2. Luke CRYER     	 GBR

3. Benedikt LAST    	 GER

25. Blake NIELSEN 	 AUS

WOMEN

1.Gun-Rita 	 NOR 	 3:34:13 
   DAHLE FLESJAA

2.Annika LANGVAD 	 DEN 	 3:37:31

3.Sabine SPITZ 	 GER 	 3:43:43

46.Sarah RILEY 	 AUS 	 4:43:13

51.Eliza KWAN 	 AUS 	 4:54:42

4X WOMEN

1. Anneke BEERTEN 	 NED

2.Lucia OETJEN 	 SUI

3.Steffi MARTH 	 GER

MOUNTAIN BIKE MARATHON WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS						   
SELVA VAL GARDENA-DOLOMITES, ITALY - 27 JUNE 2015						  
	

4X MOUNTAIN BIKE WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS						   
VAL DI SOLE, ITALY - 21ST - 22ND AUGUST 2015						   
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 WORLD RESULTS
2 0 1 5

XCO ELITE MEN

1.Nino Schurter 	 SUI 	 1:29:22

2.Julien Absalon 	 FRA 	 1:29:32

3.Ondrej Cink 	 CZE 	 1:30:37

73.Cameron Ivory 	 AUS 	 -2 Lap

84.Brendan Johnston 		  -2 Lap

DNF Daniel McConnell 	 AUS

XCO U23 MEN

1.Anton Cooper 	 NZL 1:22:03

2.Victor Koretzky 	 FRA 1:22:05

3.Grant Ferguson 	 GBR 1:22:25

34.Scott Bowden 	 AUS 1:31:10

55.Reece Tucknott 	 AUS 1:36:06

75.Ben Bradley 	 AUS -3 Lap

DNS Chris Hamilton 	 AUS

XCO U19 MEN

1.Simon Andreassen 	 DEN 	 1:13:27

2.Maximilian Brandl 	 GER 	 1:14:14

3.Egan Bernal 	 COL 	 1:15:33

33.Bryan Dunkin 	 AUS 	 1:23:23

53.Liam Jeffries 	 AUS 	 -1 Lap

61.Luke Brame 	 AUS 	 -1 Lap

63.Callum Carson 	 AUS 	 -1 Lap

73.Michael Potter 	 AUS 	 -1 lap

76.Alex Lack 	 AUS 	 -2 lap

XCO ELITE WOMEN

1.Pauline Ferrand Prevot 	 FRA 	 1:52:44

2.Irina Kalentyeva 	 RUS 	 1:53:42

3.Yana Belomoina 	 UKR 	 1:54:20

DNF Rebecca Henderson AUS

XCO U23 WOMEN 

1.Ramona Forchini 	 SUI 	 1:37:23

2.Olga Terentyeva 	 RUS 	 1:38:02

3.Jenny Rissveds 	 SWE 	 1:38:24

30.Emily Parkes 	 AUS 	 1:52:15

XCO U19 WOMEN

1.Martina Berta	  ITA 	 1:08:40

2.Evie Richards 	 GBR 	 1:10:00

3.Nicole Koller 	 SUI	  1:11:07

34.Megan Williams 	 AUS 	 -1 Lap

XCO TEAM RELAY

1.France 		  52:45

2.Denmark 		  53:09

3.Italy 		  53:46

20.Australia 		  58:43

DHI ELITE MEN

1.Loic Bruni 	 FRA 	 4:19:585

2.Greg Minnaar 	 RSA 	 +2.365

3.Josh Bryceland 	 GBR 	 +4.776

6.Troy Brosnan 	 AUS 	 +6.835

8.Connor Fearon 	 AUS 	 +7.291

10.Michael Hannah 	 AUS 	 +9.617

42.Dean Lucas 	 AUS 	 +25.680

45.Samuel Hill 	 AUS 	 +27.459

55.Jordan Prochyra 	 AUS 	 +32.370

67.David McMillan 	 AUS 	 +41.733

DHI U19 MEN

1.Laurie Greenland 	 GBR 	 4:32.839

2.Martin Maes 	 BEL 	 +3.264

3.Jackson Frew 	 AUS 	 +11.585

9.Max Warshawsky 	 AUS 	 +16.870

16.Remy Morton 	 AUS 	 +26.277

26.Joel Willis 	 AUS 	 +37.202

34.Harry Bush 	 AUS 	 +45.218

53.Andrew Crimmins 		  +2:56.010

DHI ELITE WOMEN

1.Rachel Atherton 	 GBR 	 5:08.488

2.Manon Carpenter 	 GBR 	 +3.238

3.Tracey Hannah 	 AUS 	 +9.973

21.Tegan Molloy 	 AUS	  +1:16.740

OT ELITE WOMEN

1.Janine Jungfels 	 AUS 	 22p

2.Tatiana Janickova 	 SVK 	 32p

3.Nina Reichenbach 	 GER 	 33p

XCE ELITE MEN

1.Daniel Federspiel 	 AUT

2.Samuel Gaze 	 NZL

3.Simon Gegenheimer 	 GER

12.Cameron Ivory 	 AUS

16.Paul Van Der Ploeg 	 AUS

OT 26” ELITE MEN

1.Vincent Hermance 	 FRA 	 23p

2.Jack Carthy 	 GBR 	 25p

3.Kenny Belaey 	 BEL 	 26p

22.Nathan Mummery 	 AUS	  73p

30.Jack Mullaly 	 AUS	  75p

OT 26” U19 MEN

1.Nicolas Vallee	 FRA 	 6p

2.Dominik Oswald 	 GER	  8p

3.Nicolas Fleury 	 FRA	  36p

XCE ELITE WOMEN

1.Linda Indergand 	 SUI

2.Ingrid Boe Jacobsen 	 NOR

3.Kathrin Stirnemann 	 SUI

9.Emily Parkes	 AUS 

OT 20” ELITE MEN

1.Abel Mustieles 	 ESP 	 26p

2.Luclen Leiser 	 SUI 	 34p

3.Benito Ros 	 ESP 	 36p

OT 20” U19 MEN

1.Dominik Oswald 	 GER 	 9p

2.Sebastian Ruiz 	 ESP 	 27p

3.Johan Buchwalder 	 SUI 	 33p

MOUNTAIN BIKE WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS				    	
VALLNORD, ANDORRA - 1ST - 6TH SEPTEMBER 2015
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CYCLO-CROSS WORLD CUP (CROSSVEGAS)						   
16TH SEPTEMEBER 2015							    
					  
XC ELITE MEN

1.Wout Van Aert 	 BEL 	 1:07:00

2.Sven Nys 	 BEL  	 1:07:23

40. Lachlan Norris 	 AUS 	 1:11:05

49. Christopher Aitken 	 AUS 	 1:12:41

55.Tom Chapman 	 AUS 	 1:14:27

58.Garry Millburn 	 AUS 	 -1 lap

59.Jack Hogan 	 AUS 	 -1 lap

XC ELITE WOMEN

1.Katerina Nash 	 CZE 	 49:17

2.Eva Lechner 	 ITA 	 49:32

3.Sanne Cant 	 BEL 	 49:55

23.Lisa Jacobs 	 AUS 	 52:26

43.Josie Simpson 	 AUS 	 -1 lap
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AUSTRALIAN RESULTS
2 0 1 5

ELITE MEN CROSS COUNTRY 

1. Daniel McConnell 	 AUS  	 1:29:50.5

2. Anton Cooper 	 NZL 	 1:33:26.4

3.Cameron Ivory 	 AUS 	 1:35:03.0

U23 MEN CROSS COUNTRY

1.Scott Bowden 	 AUS 	 1:18:09.8

2.Ben Bradley 	 AUS 	 1:20:56.8

3.Chris Hamilton 	 AUS 	 1:21:38.0

U19 MEN CROSS COUNTRY

1.Liam Jeffries 	 AUS 	 1:05:42.5

2. Michael Potter 	 AUS 	 1:07:01.0

3. Bryan Dunkin 	 AUS 	 1:07:41.2

U17 MEN CROSS COUNTRY

1. Cameron Wright 	 AUS 	 48:48.2

2. Matthew Dinham 	 AUS 	 49:51.9

3. Dean Cane 		  51:23.0

U15 MEN CROSS COUNTRY

1. Riley King 		  36:17.3

2. Connor Johnston 		  36:25.1

3. Joshua Tanzen 		  37:43.2

ELITE WOMEN CROSS COUNTRY

1.Rebecca Henderson 	 AUS 	 1:28:10.5

2. Kate Fluker 	 NZL 	 1:29:00.0

3. Karen Hanlen 	 NZL 	 1:32:10.9

U23 WOMEN CROSS COUNTRY

1. Amber Johnston 	 NZL 	 1:16:30.9

2. Emily Parkes 	 AUS 	 1:18:26.0

3. Mary Gray	 NZL 	 1:20:27.5

U19 WOMEN CROSS COUNTRY

1.Jemma Manchester 	 NZL 	 1:20:49.3

2. Shannon Hope 	 NZL 	 1:22:36.6

3. Megan Williams 	 AUS 	 1:24:17.8

U17 WOMEN CROSS COUNTRY

1. Jessica Manchester 	 NZL 	 1:00:06.9

2. Phoebe Young 	 NZL 	 1:01:12.8

3. Sarah Tucknott 	 AUS 	 1:02:03.3

U15 WOMEN CROSS COUNTRY

1. Zoe Cuthbert 		  40:26.4

2. Emily Wooster 		  45:36.2

3. Isabella Hosking 		  48:06.6

OPEN MEN CROSS COUNTRY

1.Boaz Clark 		  1:13:23.7

2.Adam Cooper 		  1:17:39.0

MASTERS 1/2 MEN CROSS COUNTRY

1.Brad Clarke 		  1:25:38.6

2.Bradley Babel 		  1:29:29.3

3.Steve Bale 		  1:32:47.1

MASTERS 3/4 MEN CROSS COUNTRY

1.Daniel Beresford 		  1:11:49.0

2.Paul Brodie 		  1:16:09.0

3.Jason Bray 		  1:16:32.5

MASTERS 5/6 MEN CROSS COUNTRY

1.Craig Peacock 		  57:52.1

2.Les Heap 		  58:57.8

3.Ray Hope 		  59:23.6

MASTERS 1/2 WOMEN CROSS COUNTRY

1.Anna Kallonen 		  1:16:03.9

MASTERS 3/4 WOMEN CROSS COUNTRY

1.Karen Evans 		  1:07:16.8

2.Donna Dall 		  1:10:17.6

MASTERS 5+ WOMEN CROSS COUNTRY

1.Sharon Heap 		  42:10.7

2.Jo Rowell 		  42:50.4

3.Tara Sutherland 		  46:59.7

ELITE MEN DOWNHILL

1.Richie Rude Jr 	 USA 	 2:40.15

2. Connor Fearon 	 AUS 	 2:40.16

3.Jared Graves 	 AUS 	 2:42.37

U19 MEN DOWNHILL

1.Andrew Crimmins 	 AUS 	 2:44.62

2.Max Warshawsky 	 AUS 	 2:46.04

3.Joel Willis 	 AUS 	 2:50.07

U17 MEN DOWNHILL

1.Harry Parsons 		  2:57:42

2.Joshua Clark 		  2:57:47

3.Harri Jones 		  2:58.14

U15 MEN DOWNHILL

1. Caleb Rees 		  2:09.32

ELITE WOMEN DOWNHILL

1.Claire Buchar 	 AUS 	 3:03.96

2.Tegan Molloy 	 AUS 	 3:15.05

3.Sophie Tyas 	 NZL 	 3:18.35

MASTERS 1/2 MEN DOWNHILL

1.Stuart Wood 		  3:03.75

2.Jason Greer 		  3:10.12

3.Reece Carter 		  3:16.12

MASTERS 3/4 MEN DOWNHILL

1.Robert Stone 		  3:05.39

2.Tom Gilfedder 		  3:19.49

3.Michael Dopson 		  3:13.54

OPEN MEN DOWNHILL

1.Ben Bloomfield 		  3:14.49

OCEANIA MOUNTAIN BIKE CHAMPIONSHIPS						   
TOOWOOMBA, QLD - 26TH FEBRUARY - 1ST MARCH 2015	

46 MOUNTAIN BIKE AUSTRALIA ANNUAL REPORT 2015



XCO ELITE MEN

1.Daniel McConnell 	 VIC 	 1:34:07.5

2.Brendan Johnston 	 ACT 	 1:34:53.2

3.Paul Van Der Ploeg 	 VIC 	 1:37:44.6

4.Cameron Ivory 	 NSW 	 1:39:20.8

5.Mark Tupalski 	 ACT 	 1:39:20.9

6.Adrian Jackson 	 VIC 	 1:42:25.8

7.Murray Spink 	 VIC 	 1:43:51.5

8.Travis Frisby 	 SA 	 1:43:52.6

9.Jack Lamshed 	 VIC 	 1:47:39.3

10.Steven Cusworth 	 VIC 	 1:49:02.3

XCO U23 MEN

1.Scott Bowden 	 TAS  	 1:20:25.7

2.Chris Hamilton 	 VIC  	 1:22:58.4

3.Sebastian Jayne 	 VIC 	 1:23:08.7

4.Ben Bradley 	 TAS 	 1:23:10.6

5.Reece Tucknott 	 WA 	 1:23:25.2

6.Russell Nankervis 	 VIC 	 1:23:48.3

7.Christopher Aitken 	 NSW 	 1:25:13.4

9.Tom Goddard 	 SA 	 1:25:32.1

9.Tasman Nankervis 	 VIC 	 1:25:34.5

10.Jack Lavis 	 ACT 	 1:28:58.9

XCO U19 MEN

1.Liam Jeffries 	 VIC 	 1:07:55.6

2.Bryan Dunkin 	 NSW 	 1:09:05.8 

3.Luke Brame 	 NSW  	 1:09:09.3

4.Alex Lack 	 TAS  	 1:09:10.1

5.Foley Lachal 	 VIC 	 1:10:35.7

6.Michael Harris 	 NSW  	 1:10:55.3

7.Callum Carson 	 NSW  	 1:11:02.4

8.Josh Hooton 	 QLD 	 1:11:15.6

9.Riley Morgan 	 SA 	 1:11:17.1

10.Samuel Rubery 	 WA       1:12:40.6

XCO U17 MEN

1.Kian Lerch-Mackinnon 	VIC 	 50:56.4

2.Cameron Wright 	 QLD 	 51:38.7

3.Dean Cane 	 QLD  	 52:40.9

4.Isaac Buckell 	 VIC  	 52:41.0

5.Sam Fox 	 TAS 	 53:34.7

6.Josh Battye 	 ACT 	 53:58.3

7.Luke Pankhurst 	 NT 	 54:28.6

8.Matthew Dinham 	 NSW 	 54:49.7

9.Adam Blazevic 	 VIC 	 55:11.2

10.Ben Metcalfe 	 NSW 	 55:39.3

XCO EXPERT MEN

1.Tristano Cristofoli 	 VIC 	 1:34:10.3

XCO SPORT MEN

1.Cameron Justice 	 ACT 	 58:26.2

2.Matthew Dall 	 QLD 	 1:06:48.7
3.Jason Larsson 	 QLD 	 1:11:28.4 

XCO U15 MEN

1.Charlie Todd 	 VIC  	 39:02.6

2.Riley King 	 NSW  	 40:09.4

3.Fergus McQueen 	 NSW 	 40:55.3

4.Zach Larsson 	 QLD 	 41:16.0

5.Joshua Tanzen 	 ACT  	 41:18.8

6.Ryan Smith 	 QLD 	 41:56.2

7.Matherson Galway 	 QLD 	 41:57.1

8.Nick Chisholm 	 NSW 	 42:30.0

9.Momo Frank 	 QLD 	 42:42.6

10.Kieran Cave 	 VIC 	 42:48.8

XCO MASTERS 1/2 MEN

1.Brad Clarke 	 VIC 	 1:27:28.3

2.Jarrod Moroni 	 VIC 	 1:30:49.6

3.Corey Davies 	 VIC 	 1:30:50.3

4.Mike Blewitt 	 NSW 	 1:32:57.6

5.Todd Cuthbert 	 VIC 	 1:33:45.9

6.Adam Smithson 	 NSW 	 1:35:39.0

7.Mitchell Fury 	 NSW 	 1:35:47.2

8.Gareth Paton 	 ACT 	 1:35:59.2

9.Alexander Sheppard 	 QLD 	 1:36:11.6

10.Brett Buckland 	 WA 	 1:37:33.7

XCO MASTERS 3/4 MEN

1.Stefan Merriman 	 NSW 	 1:11:07.6

2.Damien Jones	  VIC 	 1:12:13.6

3.Russell Collett 	 VIC  	 1:13:53.7

4.Phillip Gray 	 NSW 	 1:14:15.8

5.David Harris 	 NSW 	 1:14:16.3

6.Darin Lynch	 VIC 	 1:14:52.8

7.Mark Fenner 	 NSW 	 1:15:43.3

8.John Clews 	 QLD 	 1:15:46.1

9.Peter Lister 	 QLD 	 1:15:46.1

10.Daniel Beresford 	 NSW 	 1:17.44.1

XCO MASTERS 5/6 MEN

1.John Henderson 	 ACT  	 56:30.1

2.Rob Eva 	 VIC 	 57:38.8

3.Tony Tucknott 	 WA 	 58:40.4

4.Craig Peacock 	 VIC 	 59:25.1

5.Con Toparis 	 NSW 	 1:00:49.8

6.John Allison 	 SA 	 1:00:50.7

7.Luke Ingram 	 ACT 	 1:01:10.5

8.Ian King  	 NSW 	 1:01:20.6

9.Dean Kohlman 	 VIC 	 1:01:34.0

10.Michael Jamison 	 VIC 	 1:01:55.2 

XCO MASTERS 7+ MEN

1.Nicholas Bird 	 VIC 	 41:32.9

2.Guy Falla 	 VIC 	 43.52.2
3.Robert Faull 	 VIC 	 44:27.8
4.Russell Parsons	 VIC 	 47:43.5 

XCO ELITE WOMEN

1.Rebecca Henderson 	 ACT 	 1:29:20.4

1.Peta Mullens	 VIC 	 1:30:04.7

3.Jenni King 	 VIC 	 1:33:25.8

4.Jenny Fay 	 NSW 	 1:35:33.1

5.Jodie Willett 	 QLD 	 1:36:59.3

6.Karen Hill 	 VIC 	 1:38:23.8

7.Rebecca Locke 	 VIC 	 1:38:57.5

8.Sarah Riley 	 VIC 	 1:38:57.8

9.Naomi Williams 	 VIC 	 1:39.59.9

10.Therese Rhodes 	 SA 	 1:40:43.0

XCO U23 WOMEN

1.Emily Parkes 	 NSW 	 1:17:15.5

2.Holly Harris 	 NSW 	 1:17:15.6

XCO U19 WOMEN

1.Megan Williams 	 QLD 	 1:05:05.2

2.Ebony Tanzen 	 VIC 	 1:07:55.3

3.Sara Mills 	 NSW 	 1:08:31.7

XCO U17 WOMEN

1.Kathrine Hosking 	 NSW 	 1:00:29.0

1.Sarah Tucknott 	 WA 	 1:01:08.0

3.Teagan Atherstone 	 VIC 	 1:04:01.4

4.Sarah I’ons 	 NSW  	 1:05:51.5

5.Mikayla Wolfe 	 VIC  	 1:11:02.0

6.Courtney Snowball 	 VIC 	 1:14:24.5

7.Tanika Goodman 	 NSW 	 1:19:35.7

AUSTRALIAN MTB CHAMPIONSHIPS						   
BRIGHT, VIC - 12TH -15TH MARCH 2015				 
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XCO U15 WOMEN

1.Zoe Cuthbert 	 ACT  	 43.08.8

2.Emily Wooster 	 NSW  	 45.57.6

3.Isabella Hosking 	 NSW  	 48:17.0

4.Verity Evans 	 NSW 	 52:38.1

5.Sienna Grove 	 VIC 	 53:52.4

6.Chloe Dore 	 ACT 5	 8:04.6

7.Michaela Meharry 	 VIC 	 1:02:36.5

8.Jenna Metcalfe 	 NSW 	 1:10.22.8

XCO MASTERS 1/2 WOMEN

1.Tanya Faux 	 VIC 	 1:05:45.4

2.Eva Plessing 	 QLD 	 1:06:05.6

3.Philippa Rostan 	 NSW  	 1:07:50.4

4.Kate Yancey 	 SA 	 1:09:39.9

5.Anna Kallonen 	 TAS  	 1:12:52.4

6. Leah Childs 	 NSW 	 1:15:01.5

XCO MASTERS 3/4 WOMEN

1.Karen Evans 	 NSW  	 1:05:46.3

6.Donna Dall 	 QLD  	 1:11:08.4

9.Dora Bettridge 	 VIC  	 1:13:27.8

4.Justine Leahy 	 VIC 	 1:16:19.3 

XCO MASTERS 5+ WOMEN

1. Sharon Heap 	 QLD 	 1:05:32.6

2.Jo Rowell 	 QLD 	 1:06:50.8

3.Tara Sutherland 	 ACT 	 1:11:01.6

4.Lisa McLeod 	 VIC 	 1:15:59.5

5.Kay Haarsma 	 SA 	 -1 Lap

DHI ELITE MEN

1.Troy Brosnan 	 SA 	 3:56.26

2.Connor Fearon 	 SA  	 3:57.34

3.Dean Lucas 	 VIC 	 3:59.44

3.Jack Moir 	 NSW  	 3:59.79

5.Michael HANNAH 	 QLD  	 4:04.87

7.Liam Panozzo 	 VIC 	 4:06.43

7.Thomas Crimmins 	 NSW 	 4:06.98

8.Jordan Prochyra 	 WA 	 4:08.33

9.Graeme Mudd 	 NSW  	 4:08.60

10.Chris Kovarik 	 QLD 	 4:10.55

DHI U19 MEN

1.Andrew Crimmins 	 NSW  	 4:04.78

2.Remy Morton 	 QLD 	 4:11.60

3.Max Warshawsky 	 QLD  	 4:12.45

4.Jackson Frew 	 ACT 	 4:14.13

5.Joel Willis 	 NSW 	 4:21.55

6.Harry Bush 	 QLD 	 4:23.31

7.Dan Booker 	 TAS 	 4:23.40

8.Hayden Stead 	 VIC 	 4:23.68

9.Jackson White 	 VIC 	 4:31.13

10.Chris Tye 	 NSW 	 4:33.42

DHI U17 MEN

1.Patrick Butler 	 NSW 	 4:28.93

2.Ben Zwar 	 Vic 	 4:32.13

3.Matt Ellison 	 NT 	 4:32.31

4.Baxter Maiwald 	 VIC 	 4:37.77

5.Harri Jones 	 QLD 	 4:39.07

6.Aaron Gungl 	 VIC 	 4:44.87

7.Matthew Dinham 	 NSW 	 4:46.03

8.Darcy Coutts 	 VIC 	 4:53.04

9.Joshua Clark 	 NSW 	 4:59.90

10.Harry Parsons 	 NSW 	 5:09.93

DHI U15 MEN

1.James Findlay 	 NSW  	 4:47.09

2.Kye A’hern 	 ACT 	 5:10.44

5.Oskar White 	 VIC  	 5:12.99

4.Cooper Downey 	 VIC 	 5:22.97

5.Louis Tancredi 	 VIC 	 5:53

DH U13 MEN

1.Jackson Connelly 	 NSW 	 5:20.60

2.Troy Weinert 	 NSW 	 5:29.71
3.Corey Ackerman 	 SA 	 8:05.05

DHI MASTERS 1/2 MEN

1.Adrian Walsh 	 WA 	 4:38.14

2.Miikael Kinnunen 	 WA 	 4:41.39

3.Ben Davies 	 VIC 	 4:43.38

4.Chris Martin 	 NSW 	 4:45.44

5.Jack Tattersall 	 VIC 	 4:48.29

6.Mikael Amberntson 	 VIC 	 4:49.02

7.Matt Swann 	 VIC 	 4:49.11

8.Ben Morrison 	 ACT 	 4:50.15

9.Sean Martin 	 ACT 	 5:00.73

10.David Sharp 	 NSW 	 5:01.29

DH MASTERS 3/4 MEN

1.Robert Stone 	 TAS 	 4:51.44

2.Nicholas Martin 	 VIC 	 5:08.61

3.Shane Dobson 	 WA 	 5:08.84

4.Matt Wise 	 VIC 	 5:08.95

5.Paul Wilkinson 	 WA 	 5:19.97

6.Tom Gilfedder 	 ACT 	 5:21.53

7.Justin Romanowicz 	 VIC 	 5:21.53

8.Joff Medder 	 SA 	 6:29.94

9.Scott Michie 	 NSW 	 6:30.82

10.Peter Ingram 	 NSW 	 10:02.74

DHI MASTERS 5+ MEN

1.Neil Street 	 VIC 	 5:30.08

2.Richard Lumb 	 VIC 	 5:32.90

3.Lucas McDonald 	 QLD 	 5:48.72

4.Craig Kirkpatrick 	 VIC 	 6:23.55

5.Tim Roach 	 WA 	 7:29.65

6.Stephen Coles 	 NSW  	 7:47.43

7.Christopher Sumner 	 VIC 	 8:39.87

8.Graeme Coutts 	 VIC 	 8:39.87

9.Steven Bullard 	 ACT 	 6:33.07

DH HARDTAIL MEN

1.Joel Nelson 	 QLD 	 5:35.67

DH SPORT MEN

1.Adam Davis 	 VIC 	 4:58.65

2.Chris Ware 	 NSW 	 5:02.76

3.Joshua Tobin 	 VIC 	 5:06.86

4.Jamie Dunlop 	 WA 	 5:07.15

5.Adam Halsall 	 WA 	 5:13.03

6.James Moustafa 	 VIC 	 5:16.64

7.Travis Marchioro 	 VIC 	 5:23.93

8.Tristan Purss 	 VIC 	 5:25.00

9.Christopher Maclurcan QLD 	 5:26.37

10.Stas Likane 	 VIC	 5:27.37

DH EXPERT MALE

1.Liam Thomas 	 VIC 	 5:13.57

2.Ben Bloomfield 	 VIC 	 5:19.35

3.Sam Oshea	 VIC 	 5:21.08

4.Tom Anderson 	 VIC 	 5:25.33

5.Michael Cairns 		  6:02.90

AUSTRALIAN MTB CHAMPIONSHIPS CONTINUED						   
BRIGHT, VIC - 12 - 15TH MARCH 2015			

AUSTRALIAN RESULTS
2 0 1 5
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DH ELITE WOMEN

1.Tracey Hannah 	 QLD  	 4:46.64

2.Claire Buchar 	 QLD 	 4:50.40

3.Tegan Molloy 	 NSW 	 5:02.52

4.Shelley Flood 	 SA  	 5:20.46

5.Sarah Booth 	 NSW 	 5:30.79

6.Kellie Weinert 	 NSW  	 6:01.64

7.Amanda Hewetson 	 VIC 	 6:51.43

8.Sarah Silverlock 	 VIC 	 8:23.39

DH U19 WOMEN

1.Ellie Wale 	 NSW 	 5:49.46

2.Sian A’hern 	 NSW 	 7:06.67

DH U17 WOMEN

1.Mackenzie Diver 	 NSW 	 10:05.89

DH MASTERS WOMEN

1. Philippa Rostan 	 NSW 	 6:20.16

2.Coleen Boyes 	 NSW 	 6:36.28

3.Rosemary Barnes 	 ACT 	 8:15.57

4.Sharon Heap 	 QLD 	 9:09.03

DH SPORT WOMEN

1.Natasha Bonney 	 NSW 	 8:31.16 

XCE ELITE MEN

1.Paul Van Der Ploeg 	 VIC

2.Tristan Ward 	 ACT 

3.Cameron Ivory 	 NSW

4.Christopher Aitken 	 NSW

5.Daniel McConnell 	 VIC

6.Brendan Johnston 	 ACT

7.Bryan DUNKIN 	 NSW

8.Liam Jeffries 	 VIC

9.Michael Harris 	 NSW

10.Sebastian Jayne 	 VIC

XCE ELITE WOMEN

1.Emily Parkes 	 NSW

2.Rebecca Henderson 	 ACT

3.Peta Mullens 	 VIC

4.Holly Harris 	 NSW

5.Tanya Faux 	 VIC

6.Edwina Hughes 	 TAS

7.Julia BOER 	 VIC

8.Josie SIMPSON 	 VIC

XCC U17 MEN

1.Kian LERCH-MACKINNON 	 VIC

2.Cameron WRIGHT 	 QLD

3.Josh BATTYE 	 ACT

4.Sam FOX 	 TAS

5.Ben METCALFE 	 NSW

6.Luke PANKHURST 	 NT

7.Isaac FLEMING 	 QLD

8.Riley JENKINSON	  WA

9.Bryce LANIGAN 	 WA

10.Sebastian WEBER	 NSW

XCC SPORT WOMEN

1.Sarah TUCKNOTT 	 WA

2.Teagan ATHERSTONE 	 VIC

3..Zoe CUTHBERT	 ACT

4.Josie SIMPSON 	 VIC

5.Sharon HEAP 	 QLD

6.Karen EVANS 	 NSW

7.Emily WOOSTER	 NSW

8.Ebony TANZEN 	 NSW

9.Margaret CLARK 	 VIC

10. Leah CHILDS 	 NSW

XCC SPORT MEN

1.Brad CLARKE 	 VIC

2.Alex LACK 	 TAS

3.Daniel BERESFORD 	 NSW

4.Ben LACK 	 TAS

5.Samuel RUBERY 	 WA

6.Luke BRAME 	 NSW

7. TBA

8.Blake SHERGOLD 	 NSW

9.Jonty CALDER 	 WA

10. David HARRIS 	 NSW

TEAM RELAY

1. Bendigo MTB Club 		  1:06:00.4  
(Chris Hamilton, Isaac Buckell,  
Jarrod Moroni, Peta Mullens)

2.Torq Team 		  1:06:39.0  
(Tristan Ward, Liam Jefferies,  
Mark Fenner, Emily Parkes)

3.Trek Racing Australia 		  1:08:12.5  
(Reece Tucknott, Tony Tucknott,  
Sarah Tucknott, Michael Potter)

4.New England MTB Club 	 1:08:17.1

5.Planet PCS Racing Team 	 1:14:41.5

6.Corry Cycles Ace Racing 	 1:17:57.8 

OT ELITE 20” MEN

1.Nathan Mummery 	 VIC 	 20 (7 cleans)

2. Andrew Dickey 	 VIC 	 20 (6 cleans)

3. Lachlan Sens 	 VIC 	 33 

4. Morgan Dreissens 	 QLD 	 39

5. Patrick Dillon 	 NZL 	 31

6.Joel Nelson 	 QLD 	 33

OT ELITE 26” MEN

1. Andrew Dickey 	 VIC 	 9

2.Nathan Mummery 	 VIC 	 18

3. Lachlan Sens 	 VIC 	 39

4.Jack Mullaly 	 QLD 	 55

5.Jon Tollerud 	 USA 	 40

6.Borys Zagrocki 	 POL 	 43

7.Paul Gerloff 	 VIC 	 50

8.Matt Harding 	 VIC 	 50

OT EXPERT 

1. Janine Jungfels 	 QLD 	 13

2.Mitchell Ho 	 NSW 	 30

3.Kyle Rolands 	 QLD	 42

4.Dean Lawless 	 VIC 	 48

OT WOMENS

1.Jenine JUNGFELS 	 QLD 	 13
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AUSTRALIAN RESULTS
2 0 1 5

ELITE MEN

1. Paul Van Der Ploeg 	 VIC 	 1:01:57

2.Chris Jongewaard 	 SA 	 +0:13

3.Garry Millburn 	 NSW 	 +0:21

4.Shaun Lewis 	 SA 	 +0:46

5.Adrian Jackson 	 VIC 	 +2:24

6.Lewis Rattray 	 VIC 	 +3:20

7.Paul Redenbach 	 VIC 	 +3:42

8.Warrack Leach	 VIC 	 +4:03

9.Tom Ovens 	 VIC 	 +4:39

10.David Ransom 	 VIC 	 +5:03

U 23 MEN

1.Christopher Aitken 	 NSW 	 49:13

2.Tom Chapman 	 SA 	 +0:18

3.Jack Hogan 	 SA 	 +3:02

4.Nicholas Smith 	 NSW 	 +3:12

5.Nicholas Norden 	 VIC 	 +7:00

U 19 MEN

1.Ben Walkerden 	 VIC 	 44:48

2.Noah Barrow 	 ACT 	 +0:39

3.Kian Lerch-Mackinnon 	 NSW 	 +0:49

4.Adam Blazevic 	 VIC 	 +1:58

5.William Ockenden 	 VIC 	 +6:53

6.Nicholas Njegac 	 VIC 	 -1 Lap

U 17 MEN

1.Samuel Buckell 	 VIC 	 45:44

2.Oliver Beaumont 	 VIC 	 +0:11

3.Dillon Swifte 	 VIC 	 +5:19

U 15 MEN

1.James Mountain 	 VIC 	 50:57

ELITE WOMEN

1.Lisa Jacobs 	 VIC 	 49:08

2.Melissa Anset 	 VIC 	 +1:18

3.Therese Rhodes 	 SA 	 +2:18

4.Josie Simpson 	 VIC 	 +3:09

5.Rebecca Locke 	 NSW 	 +3:38

6.Penny Hosken 	 VIC 	 +4:21

7.Tessa Fabry	 VIC 	 +5:32

8.Jenny Macpherson 	 SA 	 +6:07

9.Oenone WOOD 	 NSW 	 +6:13

10. Natalie Redmond 	 SA 	 +6:43

U 23 WOMEN

1.Stacey Riedel 	 SA 	 58:39

U15 WOMEN

1.Charlotte Weir 	 VIC 	 42:40

MASTERS 1 WOMEN (30-34)

1.Anna Puckridge 	 SA 	 39:26

2.Catherine Yates 	 SA 	 +0:22

3.Bridget Slocum	 VIC 	 +0:30

4.Shelley Green 	 NSW 	 +5:47

MASTERS 2 WOMEN (35-39)

1.Virginie Bernard 	 VIC 	 38:34

2.Claire Aubrey 	 ACT 	 +1:22

3.Peri Gray 	 VIC 	 +3:19

MASTERS 3 WOMEN (40-44)

1.Karina Vitiritti 	 VIC 	 39:47

2.Gemma Kernich 	 SA 	 +2:20

3.Simone Giuliani 	 VIC 	 +10:10

MASTERS 4 WOMEN (45-49)

1.Diane Nelson 	 VIC 	 41:19

2.Annie Mollison 		  +1:42

3.Jane Ollerenshaw 	 VIC 	 +2:54

MASTERS 5 WOMEN (50-54)

1.Dale Maizels	 VIC 	 41:20

2.Gayle Ilievski 	 VIC	  +7:03

2015 AUSTRALIAN CYCLO-CROSS CHAMPIONSHIPS						   
ESSENDON FIELDS, VIC - 9TH AUGUST 2015			   			 
			 

MOUNTAIN BIKE MARATHON CHAMPIONSHIPS				 
DERBY, TAS - 16TH MAY 2015	

MARATHON ELITE MEN

1.Brendan Johnston 	 ACT 	 4:43:53.7

2.Mark Tupalski 	 ACT 	 4:45:33.7

3.Andrew Blair 	 NSW  	 4:45:43.5

4.Shaun Lewis 	 SA  	 4:57:05.5

5.Michael England 	 QLD  	 5:03:31.5

6.Marc Williams 	 ACT 	 5:05:12.2

7.Tom Goddard 	 SA 	 5:05:38.1

8.James Downing 	 ACT 	 5:06:16.3

9.Jeff Rubach 	 QLD  	 5:07:16.3

10.Steven Cusworth  	 VIC  	 5:11:10.3

MARATHON ELITE WOMEN

1.Jenny Blair 	 NSW 	 4:11:32.5

2.Eliza Kwan 	 ACT  	 4:21:14

3.Rebecca Loke 	 VIC 	 4:32:40

4.Sarah Riley 	 VIC 	 4:26:48.9

5.Karen Hill 	 VIC 	 4:27:05.7

6.Melissa Anset 	 VIC  	 4:29:18.2

7.April McDonough 	 VIC 	 4:35:45.3

8.Jody Bush 	 TAS 	 4:36:45.4

9.Edwina Hughes 	 TAS 	 4:37:42.4

10. Briony Mattocks 	 NSW 	 4:39:38.7
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2015 AUSTRALIAN CYCLO-CROSS CHAMPIONSHIPS CONTINUES			 
ESSENDON FIELDS, VIC - 9TH AUGUST 2015	

MASTERS 6 WOMEN (55-59)

1.Kristen Theile 	 VIC 	 45:06

MASTERS 1 MEN (30-34)

1.Ben Hogarth 	 SA 	 47:17

2.Mathew Gray 	 VIC 	 +1:55

3.Lawson Hartshorn 	 VIC 	 +3:19

4.Nicholas Edwards 	 VIC 	 +3:27

5.Nick Gilbert 	 VIC 	 +3:50

6.Allister Payne 	 VIC 	 +6:00

7.Bradley Lowe 	 VIC 	 +7:03

8.Brad Eastick 	 VIC 	 +8:54

9.Ryan Begg	 VIC 	 -1 lap

10.Tate Heiskanen 	 VIC 	 +3:51

MASTERS 2 MEN (35-39)

1.Adrian Scott 	 SA 	 48:11

2.Joshua Smith 	 SA 	 +0:52

3.Neil Robinson 	 VIC 	 +1:31

4.Todd Cuthbert 	 VIC 	 +2:07

5.Paul Aubrey 	 ACT 	 +3:10

6.Steven Payne 	 VIC 	 +3:43

7.Alan Miller 	 NSW 	 +4:23

8.Nicholas Cotterell 	 VIC 	 +4:38

9.Paul Cullen 	 VIC 	 +5:16

10.Evan Armstrong 	 VIC 	 +5:24 

MARATHON ELITE MEN

1.Mark Moss 	 VIC 4	 8:01

2.Andrew Low 	 VIC 	 +2:36

3.Cam Woolcock 	 VIC 	 +3:04

4.Carl Fokkema 	 NSW 	 +3:42

5.Paul Spencer 	 NSW 	 +3:53

6.Ben Healey 	 VIC 	 +5:28

7.Phillip Gray	 NSW 	 +5:37

8.Stuart Carson 	 WA 	 +5:37

9.Jason Butler 	 VIC 	 +6:08

10.Adrian Booth 	 Vic 	 -1 lap 

MASTERS 4 MEN (45-49)

1.Ollie Klein 	 SA 	 49:37

2.Jeff Curtes 	 USA 	 +0:11

3.Stu Adams 	 NSW 	 +0:47

4.Brett Kellett 	 VIC 	 +1:15

5.Lee Floyd 	 VIC 	 +1:59

6.Patrick Oliver 	 VIC 	 +3:29

7.Evan James 	 SA 	 +4:20

8.Anthony Wallace 	 VIC 	 +4:31

9.Phillip Catton 	 VIC 	 +4:31

10.John Czechowski 	 VIC 	 +5:20 

MASTERS 5 MEN (50-54)

1.Steve Munyard 	 VIC 	 44:56

2.Baz McCormack 	 VIC 	 +0:43

3.Cameron Wells 	 VIC 	 +1:45

4.Mark Geary 	 VIC 	 +2:32

5.Riki Blazevic 	 VIC 	 +4:18

6.Stuart Weir 	 NZL 	 +4:18

7.Anthony Rybar 	 VIC 	 +4:40

8.Andre Clayden 	 QLD 	 +4:40

9.Gregory Norden 	 VIC 	 +4:43

10.Doug Harvey 	 VIC 	 +7:20 

MASTERS 6 MEN (55-59)

1.Craig Peacock 	 VIC 	 42:07

2.Chris Dimos 	 VIC 	 +6:46

3.Norman Gray 	 VIC 	 -1 lap

MASTERS 7 MEN (60-64)

1.John Allison 	 SA 	 47:47
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MASTERS 1/2 MEN

1.Ben Randall  	 VIC

2.Matthew Harrington  	 NSW

3.James Hollands  	 QLD

4.Alex Gunn  	 VIC

5.Ben Morrison  	 ACT

6.Mark Jentz  	 QLD

7.Joshua Hayes  	 QLD

8.Nathan Spencer  	 ACT

9.Jonathan Hoare  	 VIC

10.Tim Lawley  	 NSW

MASTERS 3/4 MEN

1.Clint Pettersen  	 QLD

2.Boris Fontanella  	 SA

3.Sheldon Jones  	 QLD

4.John Dall’ozzo  	 QLD

5.Andrew O’Farrell  	 NSW

6.Duncan Murray  	 VIC

7.Gareth Smith  	 QLD

8.Evan Jeffery 	 VIC

9.Dean Kelly  	 QLD

10.Michael Robertson  	 ACT

MASTERS 5+ MEN

1.David Empey  	 VIC

2.Lucas McDonald  	 QLD

3.Michael Longhurst  	 ACT

UNDER 17 MEN

1.Marlin Grupp  	 VIC

2.Dylan McKenzie  	 QLD

3.Jordan Sutherland  	 QLD

4.Harrison Wellingham  	 QLD

5.Joseph Simpson  	 ACT

6.Kye Olsen 	 QLD

7.Angus Durack  	 QLD

8.Cameron Cubit  	 QLD

9.Lucas Lockhart  	 QLD

UNDER 15 MEN

1.Joseph Witzerman  	 QLD

2.Joel Sutherland  	 QLD

3.Jackson Fragiacomo  	 QLD

4.Liam Whipp   	 QLD

5.Matthew Empey  	 VIC

6.Toby Greenwood  	 QLD

7.Max Harrison  	 QLD

8.Connor Maclachlan  	 NSW

9.Kevin Donnelly  	 QLD

10.Nathan Cubit  	 QLD

SPORT MEN

1.Juan Briceno	 QLD

ENDURO NATIONAL CHAMPIONSHIPS
CAIRNS, QLD - 18TH OCTOBER 2015	
	
ELITE MEN

1.Christopher Panozzo	 VIC

2.Berend Boer  	 QLD

3.Shannon Hewetson  	 VIC

4.Evan Winton   	 QLD

5.Ben Forbes  	 QLD

6.Daniel MacMunn  	 VIC

7.Graeme Mudd  	 NSW

8.Dru Berryman  	 VIC

9.Jimmy Pritchard  	 WA

10.Jon Odams  	 NSW

ELITE WOMEN

1.Emily Parkes  	 NSW

2.Jaclyn Schapel  	 TAS

3.Angela Williams 	 QLD

4.Jacinta Pink  	 QLD

JUNIOR MEN

1.Loic Fery  	 QLD

2.Samuel Rubery  	 WA

3.Blake Pearce  	 WA

4.Jarrod Murphy  	 VIC

5.Nicholas Tancredi  	 VIC

6.Behailu Green  	 QLD

7.Yannik Frank  	 QLD

8.Samuel Carmody  	 QLD

9.Ryan Morgan  	 QLD

EXPERT MEN

1.Kyle Evans 	 QLD

2.Andrew Hawkes  	 QLD

3.Justin Bailey  	 QLD

4.Nick Dovey  	 QLD

5.Steven Pike  	 QLD

AUSTRALIAN RESULTS
2 0 1 5
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AUSTRALIAN CAPITAL TERRITORY

NEW SOUTH WALES

NORTHERN TERRITORY

QUEENSLAND

2

1

1

5

5

4

168

23

19

14

LEVEL 1-3  

92

21

MTBA COMMISSAIRES
2 0 1 5
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SOUTH AUSTRALIA
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VICTORIA

WESTERN AUSTRALIA
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% = PERCENTAGE OF MEMBERS PER PARTICULAR CATEGORY

OVERALL TOTAL 12,083

RACE SENIOR

6925 

57%

TOTAL MEMBERS

RECREATION

1216
TOTAL MEMBERS

RACE JUNIOR

1088

9% 8%

10%

TOTAL MEMBERS

CA/BMX/ADCC 
VALUE AID

805

7%

DIRTMASTER

957
TOTAL MEMBERS

FREE TRIAL NON RIDING

1090 2

9% 0.01%

TOTAL MEMBERS

TOTAL MEMBERS

TOTAL MEMBERS

MEMBER STATS
2 0 1 5
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ACT

NSW

NT

QLD

SA

TAS

VIC

WA

GENDER BY STATE BREAKDOWN 

NATIONALLY 

21%

16%

20%

17%

13%

14%

13%

14%

79%

84%

84%

80%

83%

16%

87%

86%

87%

86%

TOTAL 128

TOTAL 40

MEMBER STATS
2 0 1 5
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TOTAL 128

TOTAL 40

CLUBS
NSW 45

ACT 1

QLD 32

VIC 32

TAS 3

NT 2

WA 15

SA 3

PRIVATE
PROMOTERS

NSW 14

ACT 4

QLD 7

VIC 12

TAS 6

NT 0

WA 7

SA 4

CLUBS & PROMOTERS
M T B A

B Y  S TAT E
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Address:  
Level 1, 246 Varsity Parade,  

Varsity Lakes QLD 4227
Tel: +61 (07) 5628 0110

Email: info@mtba.asn.au
mtba.asn.au 

FB: facebook.com/MTBA 


